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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPCRT
To the shareholder of Ignitis UAB

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ignitis UAB (hereinafter the Company), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of 31 December 2019, the statement of profit (loss) and other comprehensive income,

the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2019 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the requirements of the Law on
Audit of the financial statements of the Republic of Lithuania that are relevant to the audit in the Republic of Lithuania, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Law on Audit of the financial statements of the
Republic of Lithuania and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other matters

Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 were audited by other auditor, who on
25 March 2019 issued an unmodified opinion on financial staterments mentioned above.

Other information

Other information consists of the information included in the Company's 2019 Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information presentation.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon, except as indicated below.

In connection to our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

We also have to evaluate, if the financial information included in the Company's Annual Report corresponds to the financial
statements for the same financial year and if the Company's Annual Report was prepared in accordance with the relevant
legal requirements. In our opinion, based on the work performed in the course of the audit of financial statements, in all
material respects:
» The financial information included in the Company’'s Annual Report corresponds to the financial information included
in the financial statements for the year then ended; and
» The Company’s Annual Report was prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Law on Financial Reporting
by Undertakings of the Republic of Lithuania.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease cperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a baslis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

UAB ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC
Audit company’s licence Ng. 001335

//, Jeeoveec e 'S

Kestutis Judzaitis
Auditor’s licence
No. 000550

22 April 2020



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

As at
31122018
{restated)"

As at

311212019

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible asset 6 35905 23.832
Property. plant. and equ pment 7 2 446
Right-of-use assets 8 485
Investments into subsidiaries 9 5374 -
Loans granted 1" 9200
Investments in assocated entilies and other investments 10 103 82
QOther receivables 16 3043 -
Deferred tax assets 32 3,396 5663
Total non-currant assets 69,962 29,897
Current assets
Inventeries 12 43372 19.835
Prepaymenis 13 32032 11284
Advance income tax 479 144
Amounts receivable under cantracts with customers 14 60 986 57.014
Loans recervabie and inlerest 6 -
Derivatives 15 5269 412
Other current financial assels 16 6821 198
Cash and cash equivalents 17 23,409 11,438
Total current assets 172,385 100,325
TOTAL ASSETS 232,337 130,222
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share Capita 18 40,140 8370
Reserves 19 468 468
Retained earnings (254) 1811
Total equity 40,354 10,649
Liabilities
Non-current liabifities
interest-bearing loans and other borrowings 20 0.7
Provisions 2 93 4
Leasa liabilities 21 326 -
Other non-current fwnancial labilities 14 -
Total non-current liabilities 31,170 4
Current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and other borrowings 20 79.577 22.451
Lease habilities 21 160 -
Trade payables 23 40.055 75,301
Contract labifties 24 20.097 18,517
Income tax payable 32 62 31
Provisions 22 21 -
Denvatives 15 2528 17
Other current amounts payable and liabilities 25 18,313 3.251
Total current liabilities 160,813 119,569
Total liabilities 191,983 119,673
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 232,337 130,222

* Amounts presented do not match the Financial Statements of 2018 and related adustments arg disclosed in Note 4

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of these financial statements

:‘: ignitis The Company’s Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

Notes 2019 2018 * { restated )
Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers 26 433,358 208.754
Other income 27.28 4,002 -
437,360 208,754
Cost of sales 29 (416,044) (212,153)
GROSS PROFIT (LOSS) 21,116 (3,399)
Operating expenses {25,103) {7.537)
Business support senices (7.539) {3,180)
Amaortization and depreciation 67 {5.312) (826)
Wages and associated laxes {3.115) {953)
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries g (2.500) -
Cost of collecting payments and processing information from the private customers {1,602) {729)
Telecommunication and information technology services {1,847) (575)
Change in impairment of receivables and write-offs (1,191) {252}
Consulting services {512) {226)
Change in provision for employee benafits (217) {77)
Short term and low value rental costs (69) (81)
Change in vacation reserve {43) (15)
Qther costs (1,156} (623)
OPERATING PROFIT {LOSS) {3,787} (10,936)
Finance income 30 438 217
Finance expenses M (1439 {143)
{1.001) 74
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX {4,788) {10,362)
Income tax gam (expenses}) 32 {547} 4,941
NET PROFIT {LOSS) 15,335) (5,921}
Cither comprehensive income (loss) which witl not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent penod -
Cther comprehensive income (loss) which may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent period - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {5,315} {5,921)

* Amounts presented do not maich the Financtal Statements of 2018 and related adjustments are disclosed in Note 4

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

» a L) L] Th ) 1
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

All amounls are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

Logatrosasa PORSLANNGS T casty
Balance as at 1 January 2018 8,370 87 12,803 21.260
Effect of change in accounting policies following o - - (117 (17}
the adoption of new 9 IFRS
Restated balance as at 1 January 2018 8,370 87 12,686 21,143
Net profit (loss) for the reporting pericd 4
{restated)" s - (5.921} (5,921)
Total comprehensive income for the period
{restated]* - - (5,921} {5,921)
Transfer to legal reserve . 38t (381) -
Diwdends declared 18 - - {4,572) (4.572)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 8,370 468 1,811 10,649
Balance as at 01 January 2019 8,370 468 1,811 10,649
Net profit {loss) for the reporting period S - (5.335) (5,335)
Tota! comprehensive income for the period - - {5,335) {5,316)
Effect of business combinations under common 34
control 31770 - 3,270 35,040
Balance at 31 December 2019 40,140 468 (254) 40,354

* Amounts presented do not match the Financial Statements of 2018 and related adjusiments are disciosed in Note 4

The accompanymg notes are an integral part of this financial information.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

2018 (restated)*

Net profit {loss) (5.335) {5,921)
Adfustments to reconcile net profit (foss} to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 678 532 827
Change in impairment of receivables 535 146
Fair Value change of derivatives 28 (2.288) (185)
(Increase) decrease in deferred income tax 32 174 14,968)
Income tax expenses 3z 373 27
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries 9 2500 -
Increase {decrease) in provisions 69
Elimination of results of financing and investing activities:
- Interest income a0 {426) (208}
- Interest expenses k3] 141 143
Other finance {income)/costs 3 28 -
- Dividend (income) 10, 30 (12) {11
Working capital adjustment.
{Increase} decrease in trade receivables 26,819 (21.182)
{Increase) decrease in inventorigs and other current assels (5.584) 4 555
{Increase) decrease in prepayments and accrued income (20.668) 18 372
Increase/{decrease) in payables and contract liabilities (45.4486) 24,965
Increase {(decrease) in prepayments 1,756 3,920
Increase {decrease) in other payables 14.018 {694)
Income tax (paid) & (88}
Net cash flows from {to) operating activities {26,764) 19,720
Cash flows from / (used in} investing activities
{Purchase) of property, plant and equipment and intangibte assets 6.7 (2 308) (3203
Loans granted 11 (3.700} (176}
Loan repayments received 1" 5.998 -
Interest and interest on late payment received 236 206
Dividends received 10, 30 12 i3]
Financial lease payments received 465 -
Change cash flows from investing activites due {0 business combinatians 34 {22 117) -
Net cash flows from investing activities {20.412) (279)
Cash flows from/ (used in} financing activities
Loans received 83821 -
Repayments of barrowings (23.296} {B.887)
Lease payments Fal (142) -
Interest and commission {paid) (1.238) (143)
Dividends {paid) - (4,572)
Net cash flows from/ (used in} financing activities 59,147 {13,602)
Net increasel{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11,971 5,839
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period T 11,438 5,599
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 17 23,409 11,438

* Amounts presented do not match the Financial Statements of 2018 and related adiustments are disclosed in Note 4.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial information
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

1 General

Ignitis UAB is a public limited habilily campany registered in the Republic of Lithuania. Ignitis UAB (hereinafter — the Company) is a limited
liability profit-oriented entity registered with the Register of Legal Entittes managed by the public institution the Centre of Registers. The Company
was registered on 2 September 2014. The company code 303383884, VAT payer's code LT100008860617, The Company has been founded
for an indefinite period. The Company's registered office address is Zvejy g 14, LT-09310, Vilnius, Lithuania.

The Company's core hne of business is the supply, purchase (import). planning and sale of natural gas and electricity to consumers The
Company supplies natural gas to corporate customers operating in the sectors of energy, industry and small commercial businesses. and to
private customers — overall 594 thousand customers, including supply of liquefied natural gas (hereinafter - LNG) through the Klaipéda LNG
Terminal. The Company started the activity of public electricity supply with effect from 1 October 2018, Ignitis LAB supplies electricity to more
than 1.64 million private customers and more than 6.9 thousand commercial customers in Lithuania. From 1 June 2019 the Company is also
engaged in balancing of electricity consumption, issuing of energy origin cerlificates, and wholesale trade in electricity futures. in addition. the
Company carries out the projects for the designing and construction of solar power plants, implementation of energy efficiency solutions. and
development of electric ¢car charging stations.

The Company commenced the natural gas supply activity on 1 November 2014, Lietuvos Dujy Tiekimas UAB was established o implement the
requirements of the legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania aimed at the legal, functional and erganisational separation of the natural gas supply
and distribution activities. The separation of the distribution activity was affected through the sale of the nalural gas supply activity with the
assels, rights and cbligalions, attributable to it by Lietuvos Dujos AB. to newly esiablished company Lietuvos dujy tiekimas UAB under the
agreement on the purchase-sale of a part of business dated 15 October 2014_ As al 1 October 2018, the name of Lietuvos Dujy Tiekimas UAB
was changed o Lietuvos Energijos Tiekimas UAB, and as at 6 September 2019, the name of the Company was changed to Ignitis UAB

The company tgnitis UAB is a company ullimately controlied by the state and one of the largest state-owned groups of energy companies in the
Baltic countries. Ignitis Grupé UAB {company code 301844044, registered address Zvejy st 14, 09310 Vinius, Lithuania) is the parent company
that owns 100% shares of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and 2018

Az at 31 December 2018, the Company's subsidiaries were as follows

The Company's
investment value and
share capital of
subsidiary, (EUR 000}
Az at 31 December

The Company's

Registered office address ownership
interest, %

Profile of activities

2019
Ignitis Eesti OU” Narva st. 5. 10117 Tallinn. Estonia 100 35 Retail kade in electricity
Ignitis Latvija SIA™* Césu iela 31, k-2 2LV-1012 Ryga. Latvia 100 6 500 Retail trade in electricity
Wholesale trade in
Ignitis Polska Sp.zoo™* Putawska g 2B, Warsaw, 02-566, Poland 100 2339 electricity
Imparment***” {2 500}
5,374

* {3eton Energy O before the change of the name on 6 September 2019

** Geton Energy 5iA before the change of the name on 6 September 2019.

*** Geton Energy 5.p.z.c.0 before the change of the name on 6 September 2019

*+** The Company tested for impairment its investments in subsidiaries. the infermation of which is given in Note 5

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had no subsidiaries. These subsidiaries were acquired under the terms of reorganization of 4™
September 2018. Upon consolidation of electricty and natural gas trading and supply activities Litgas UAB was merged, reorganization was
completed as at 1 January 2019. and the merger of Energijos Tiekimas UAB was carried out on 1 June 2019, during which the shareholdings
of Ignitis Eesti QU. Ignitis Latvija SiA and Ignitis Polska Sp. z 0.0 were transferred to the Company. See Note 34 for more details about these
business combinations. Financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are included in the consalidated financial statements of the
parent Ignitis Group UAB. therefore, the Company dees not prepare consohdated financial statements in line with the provisions of Paragraph
2.1 of Article 5 of the Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Consolidated Financial Reporting by Groups of Undertakings and the relevant
exemption provided by the IFRS 10.4

As al 31 December 2018. the number of the Company's employees were 108 (as at 31 December 2018 - 3d).

The Company's management authorized these financial statements on 22 April 202{.

The Company's shareholder has a statutory right to request the amendment of these financial statements after their approval in accordance
with the laws and regulations of the Republic of Lithuara.

Lo ) [P h . i i n D ber 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

2  Accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB”), as endorsed by the European Union ("EU"), and present
the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company on a going concern basis. Management has concluded that the going
concern basis of preparation of the accounts is appropriate. The financial statements have been prepared on an acquisition cost basis, except
for financial assets held for sale (derivatives), and measured at fair value through profit or loss

These financtal statements are presented in the Euro (EUR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

The Company's financial year coincides with a calendar year.

2.2 Accounting policy

The accounting policies adopted in preparing the Company s financial statements are the same as those applied in preparing the annual financial
statements for the year 2018, except for the new effective standards as of 1 January 2018 described below.

a} New standards. amendments and nterpretations

» IFRS 16 Leases (effective 1 January 2019}

The Company adopled IFRS 16 Leases for the first time in the financial year ended 31 December 2019, which had an impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

The new standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement. presentation and disclosure of leases. All leases resuit in the lessee
obtaining the right to use an asset al the start of the lease and. if lease paymenis are made over time. also obtaining financing Accordingly
IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of [eases as either operating leases or finance leases as is required by IAS 17 and, inslead. introduces a
single lessee accounting model. Lessees are required 10 recognise: {a) assets and fiabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months.
unless the underlying asset is of low value; and (b) depreciation of lease assels separately from interest on lease liabllities in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly
alessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two lypes of leases differently, The value
of assets received under the lease agreement and related lease liabilities will be stated in the Company’s statement of financial position

The Company accounted for the impact of the first-time adoption of IFRS 16 starting from 1 January 2019 using the modified retrospective
approach. The Company recognised assets and liabilities managed under the right of use which indicates the impact of the firsl-ime adoption
of IFRS 16 on the Company's financtal stalements

The impact of the first-time adoption of IFRS 16 on the Company's statement of the financial position as at 1 January 2019 1s shown in the table
below

{EUR'0Q0}

As at 31 December 2018 (recognised prior to the

adoption of IFRS 16) IFRS 16 As at 01 January 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Right-of-use assets : z 280 280
in total 250 2940
EQLITY AND LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Lease habilities : (217} (217}
Current liabilities )
Lease labilities - {73} (73]
In total - {290} {290)

L] - - L] '
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 can be reconciled to non-cancelable operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 as follows

As at 1 January 2019

The future minimum lease payments under irrevocable operating lease agreements as at 31 December 2018: 1,260
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019, 2,20%
The lease liability recognised an 1 January 2019 by applying the incremental borrowing rate 1,097
Add Financial lease obligations recognised on 31 December 2018 -
Less: Contracts not subject to IFRS 16 following final assessment (678)
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases -
Less: Commitments relating to leases of low-value assets {129)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 290
Of which:
Current lease habihitres 217
Non-current lease liabilities 73
290

For the year ended 31 December 2019

. Depreciation expense increased because of the depreciation of additional assets recognised (i e . right-of-use assets). This resulted
in increases in Operating expenses of 120 thousand Eur

* Rent expensea included in Operating expenses, relating to previous operating leases. decreased by 53 thaousand Eur

. Finance expenses increased by 7 thousand Eur relating te the interest expense on additional lease liabilities recognised

. Cash outflows from operating actvities decreased by 142 thousand Eur and cash outfiows from financing activities increased by the
same amount. relating to decrease in operating lease payments and increases in principal and interest payments of lease hiabilities.

Practica' expedient when the Company is a lessee

When the Company is a lessee. the following practical expedients were applied on a case-by-case basis during the transitional to IFRS 16
The Company:

1 Applies a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics {i.e. leases with a similar remaining lease term
for a similar ¢lass of underlying asset in a similar economic enviranment}

2 Efects not to apply any transitional adjustments for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value (assets with a value of 4 000 eurc or
less when new). The Company accounis for these leases in accordance with IFRS 16 from the date of initial application

3. Excludes initial direct costs on leases previously classified as operating ieases from the measurement of the right-of-use assets by applying
the Standard at the commencement date.

4. Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract coniains options to extend or terminate the lease Consistent with 1AS 8
hindsight is applied only to matiers of accounting estimates and judgements and therefore would not apply to matters of fact such as changes
in an index or rate.

5. The Company has elected to apply practical expedient to account for a lzase and associated non-lease componenls as a single lease
component consistently with the Company’s accounting policies.

. Prepayment features with negative compensation - amendments to IFRS 9 (1ssued 12 Oclober 2017, effective 1 January 2019):

The amendment allows financial assets with prepayment features that permit or require a party to a contract either to pay or receive reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract (so that. from the perspective of the holder of the asset there may be ‘negalive
compensation’), to be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income According to the Company's
management, the first-time adoption of the amendments had ne significant impact on the Cempany's financial statements.

+  Long-term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures - amendments to IFRS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”
(issued 12 Qctober 2017, effective 1 January 2019):

The amendment relates to whether the measurement, in particuiar relating to impairment. of long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
that. in substance, form part of the ‘net investment' in the assaciate or joint venture should be governed by IFRS 9. 1AS 28 or a combination of
both. The amendment clarifies that entities shall apply the requirements in IFRS 9. Financial instruments. before applying requirements in IAS
28 to long-term interests lo which the equity method is not applied. In applying IFRS 9. the Company does not take account of any adjustments
to the carrying amount of long-term interests that result from the application of 1AS 28. According to the Company's management, the first-time
adoption of the amendments had no significant impact on the Company’s financial statements

« IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” (issued 7 June 2017, effective 1 January 2019}

The interpretation clarifies how the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 12 Income taxes, are applied where there Is uncertainty
over income tax treatments. The Interpretation provides guidance on considering uncertain tax treatments separalely or together, examination
by taxation authorities, the appropriale method to reflect uncertainty and accounting for changes in facts and circumstances. According to the
Company’s management. the first-time adoption of the interpretation did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements

L ] - " a ) H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

. “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” - amendments to IAS 19 “Employee benefits” (issued 7 February 2018, effective 1
January 2019):

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 The amendments relate to a defined benefit plan, under which an entity pays
benefits to an employee at the end of service When the plan is amended. curtailed or settled, an entity shall restate its net defined benefil
liability or assel at the present fair value of the plan assets and current actuarial assumptions {including current market interest rates and other
current market prices). The amendments require entity to use the updated revaluation assumptions for the planned defined benefits (i.e. benefits
payable to the employee at the end of service) to determine the current service cost (increase in the present value of a defined benefit plan
liability) and the amount of interest for the remaining period after the plan change. These assumptions are included in current actuanal
assumptions (demographic, financial) Previously IAS 19 had not provided guidance on how to determine these costs for a period after the
change in plan. The requirement to use the updated assumptions is expected to provide useful information to users of financial statements
Amendments have been approved by the European Commission. The first time application of the amendment did not have a significant impact
on the Company's financial statements.

IASBs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle (1ssued December 17 2017, effective 1 January 2019)
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Minor revisions affected four standards:

. IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control
of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previpusly held interests in that business. The amendments 1o 1FRS 11 clarify thal
when an enfity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation. the entity does not remeasure previously held interests in that
business.

. iISA 12 Income Tax: The amended explains that an entity recognises all income tax consequences of dividends where it has recognised
the transactions or events that generated the related distnbutable profits, e.g. in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. This
requirement applies in all circumstances as long as payments on financial instruments classified as equity are disiributions of profits

. IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: The amendments to paragraph 14 clarifies that. when a qualifying asset is ready for ils intended use or sale,
and some of the specific borrowing related to that qualifying asset remains outstanding at that point, that borrowing is 10 be included in the
funds that an entity borrows generally

According to the Company's management, the first-time adoption of the annual standard improvements did not have any significant impact on
the Company's financial statements.

b} _Standards_amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

« Amendment in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or
Contribution of Assats between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28, in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is thal a full gain or
loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gan or loss is recognized when
a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary, In December 2015 the IASB
postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the outcome of its research project on the equity method of accounting
The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Management of the Company is in the process an assessment of the impact of
the amendments to the financial statements of the Company.

s+  Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (issued 29 March 2018, effective 1 January 2020)

On 29 March 2018. the IASB issued a revised version of its Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. The Conceptual Framework sets
out a comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting, standard setting. guidance for preparers in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance to others in their efforts to understand and interpret the standards. The IAGB has also issued a separate accompanying
document, Amendments to References lo the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, which sets out the amendments to affected standards
n order to update references to the revised Conceptual Framework. Its purpose is te suppaort fransition to the revised Conzeptual Framework
for companies that develop accounting policies using the Conceptual Framework when no IFRS Standard applies to a particular transaction
For campanies who develop accounting policies based on a conceptual framework, it is applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020. Document approved by European Commission. The Company’s management has made an assessmen that implementation of
change in Conceptual Framework does not have significant impact on the financial statements of the Company

. Amendmaents to IFRS 3 Business Combinations (issued 31 October 2018, effective 1 January 2020)

The IASE issued amendments to the definition of a business in IFRS 3 (amendments lo IFRS 3} aimed at resolving the difficulties that arise
when an entity is determining whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments are effective for business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier
adoption permitted. The amendments have not yel been endorsed by the EU. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this amendment
on its financial statements.
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. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors {issued
October 31 2018, effective 1 January 2020}

Amendments to these standards are intended to help the entities to identify material information which should be disclosed in the financial
statements. Thus the definition of ‘material’ was improved in IAS 1 and |AS 8. The amendments were made in response lo the finding that some
entities had difficulties in deciding which information is material under old definilion. New materiality definition: information is material if omitting
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions that the primary users of generat purpese financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity. The Company's
management has made an assessment that implementation of the amendments does not have significant impact on the financial stalements of
the Company.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” (issued 26 December 2019, effective 1 January 2020Q)

Amendments to these standards were made in response to the report of the Financial Stability Board setting out recommendations to reform
some maijor benchmarks such as interbank offered rates {IBOR). The reform replaces the IBOR with an alternative risk free rate (RFR), which
would provide more security lo insurance hedges that will not include the credit risk premium currently included in IBOR. The Reform was
nitiated in response to emerging global systemic risk caused by the dependence of the efficiency of financial operations on IBOR. There is also
a concern about how these rates are set in adverse market conditions. The reform process is subject to considerable uncertainty over application
of the interest rate benchmark in the leng run. For this reason, adjustments have been made to address the issues that arise during the transfer
from IBOR to RFR. The adjustments seek to amend specific hedge accounting requirements in IFRS 9 and 1AS 39 to provide exemptions for
entities that already apply RFRs to hedges during the period of uncertainty caused by reform.

- in determining whether a forecast transaction is highly probable, the entity assumes that the interest rate benchmark underlying the hedge
cash flows will not be changed due to the reform of the interest rate benchmark;

- in its prospective assessment, an entity assumes that the interest rate benchmark underlying the hedged item. hedging risk and/or hedging
instrument remains unchanged due to the reform of the interest rate benchmark;

-1AS 39 has been amended so that an entity is not required to make a retrospective assessment of hedge relationships that are directly affected
by the interest rate benchmark reform, as long as the entity complies with all other accounting requirements of 1AS 39 hedge accounting.
including the expected measurement;

the interest rate benchmark must be individually identified as a risk component that is only measured/set af inception of the hedging relations hip

The exceptions will become void once the uncertainty surrounding the Interest Rate Benchmark Reform disappears. Itis announced that further
changes to the standards will be made in the fulure to establish accounting reguirements when the reform is implemented. Amendments have
been endorsed by the European Commission, The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on its financial statements

. 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current {Amendments}

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 with earlier application permitted. The
amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the statement of financiat
position, debt and other liabilties with an uncertain setffement date should be classified as current or non-current. The amendments affect the
presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position and do not change existing requirements around measurement or timing of
recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, nor the information that entities disclose about those items. Also, the amendments clarify
the classification requirements for debt which may be settled by the company issuing own equity instruments. These Amendments have not yet
been endorsed by the EU. The Management of the Company is in the process of an assessment of the impact of the amendments te the financiat
statements of the Company.

2.3. Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are accounled for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions gains and losses resulting from
such transactions and from the Iranslation of balances of assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
recegnised in the statement of comprehensive income. These balances are translated atthe exchange rates prevaiting atthe end of the reporting
period

2.4. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are slated at acquisition (production) cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment tosses, if any. Amortisation 13
calculated on a straight-line basis over the usefut lives established for intangible assets

The following useful lives are applied to different categories of assets:
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intangible assets 1dentified during business combination
Provision of the balancing service 20
Trading of derivatives 20
Custemer relation assets 5-15
Licenses 34
Computer software 34

* For intangible assets taken over by Energlos tiekimas UAB (see Note 34)
2.5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are such items of assets, which are under the Company's ownership and control; which are reasonably expected
to bring economic benefils in future periods; which are going to be used longer than one year: the acquisition cost of which can be relably
measured.

Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition {production) cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, If any
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-fine basis over the enlire useful life established for property, plant and
equipment.

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed regularly and adjusted, if appropriate according to the
pracedure established at the Company,

When assets are written off or otherwise disposed, the acquisilion cost and related accumulated depreciation charges are derecognised from
the financial statements, and gain or loss on such disposal is recognised in profit or loss. Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between proceeds and the net book value of assets disposed.

The following useful lives are applied to different categories of property, plant and equipment:

Solar power plants 10
Electric vehicles charging stations 5
Compulter hardware and communication equipment 3"
Other tangeble assets 4

* For property. plant and equipment taken over by Energijos Tiekimas UAB

2 8. Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other non-current assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other non-current
assets to determine whether there are any indications that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
Company makes estimate of the recoverable amount of such property, plant and equipment and non-current assets to assess impairment, if
any. For the purposes of assessing impairment. assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
{cash-generating units})

The recoverable amount is the hugher of the assel’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the expected future
cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using the discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised immedialely in profit or loss, unless such an
asset was previously revaluzd, In that case, the impairment loss is accounted for as decrease in revaluation reserve.

Where an impairment loss subsequenily reverses. the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit} is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no imparment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prier years. net of depreciation. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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2.7 Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use asset is the asset that reflects the right of the Company to use the leased asset over the life of a lease. Since 1 January 2019, the
Company recognises right-of-use assets for all leases. including the subleases of right-of-use assets short-term leases and low-value leases.

initial_measurement of right-of-use assets

At the commencement date. a lessee measures the right-of-use asset at cosl. The cost of the right-of-use asset shali comprise of the following:
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability. any lease payments made at or befare the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received

Subseguent measurement of right-of use assels

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures the right-of-use asset al cost. Under the cost model. the Company measuwres a right-
of-use asset at cost less any depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated by the Company under the depreciation requirements of FAS 16, Properly. Plant and Equipment.

If the lease transfars ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the nght-of-use asset
reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the Company depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the
end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the lessee shall depreciate the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

. Buildings: 3 to 5 years
+  Structures and machinery. 4 to § years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting pelicy in section 2,6 Impairment of non-financial assets.

The Company presents rights-of-use assets separately from intangible and property. plant and equipment assets in the statement of financial
position

2.8. Investments in subsidiaries and associates in the Company's separate financial statements

Subsidiary is an enlity directly or indirectly controlled by a parent company and in which a parent company usually has a shareholding of more
than one half of the voling righls. The Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has nghts to. vanable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the abity to affect those relurns through its power over the entity.

In the parent company’s statement of financial position investments in subsidiaries are staled at cost less impairment, where the investment's
carrying amount in the parent’s statement of financial position exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Caost also includes directly altributable
expenditure

An associate is an enlity over which the Company has a significant influence.

In the Company's statement of financial position investments in associates are stated at cost less impairment, where the: investment’s carrying
amount in the Company's statement of financial position exceeds its estimated recoverable amount Cost also includes directly attributable
expenditure

2.9. Financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories

{iy financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost.
(ii) financial assels subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
(iiiy financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss

Subsequent to initial recognition. financial assets are classified into the afore-mentioned categories based on the business model the Company
applies when managing its financial assets. The business model applied to the group of financial assets is determined at a level that reflects
how all groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective of the Company. The ntentions of the
Company's management regarding separate instruments has no effect on the applied business model. The Company may apply more than one
business model to manage its financial assets.
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The business model for managing financial assets is a matter of fact and nol merely an assertion It is typically observable through the activities
that the Company undertakes to achieve the objective of the business model. In determining the business model applicable for managing
financial assets, the Company justifies its decision not by a single factor or activity, but in view of all relevant evidence that is available at the
date of the assessment.

The Company recognises a financial asset in its stalement of financial position when, and only when, the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. The purchase or sale of financial assets is recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using trade
date accounting.

At initial recognition, the Company measures financial assets at fair value, excep! for trade receivables that da not have a significant financing
component. Financial assets are initially measured at fair vatue plus, in the case of a financial asset not al fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of a financial asset.

Transaction costs comprise all charges and commission that the Company would not have paid if it had not entered into an agreement on the
financial instrument.

if the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition differs fram the transaction price, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.
In view of the business model applied for managing the group of financial assets, the accounting for financial assets is as follows:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Loans granted by the Company and amounts receivable are accounted for under the business model the purpose of which is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that can contain cash flows related to the payment of the principal amount and interest inflows.

Loans and amounts receivable are non-derivatives with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active -market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the date of the statement of financial position. These
are classified as non-cusrent assets.

Loans and receivables are initially recognised al cost (the fair value of consideration receivable) and subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when these assels are derecognised, impaired or amortised.

Financial_gssets at fair value through profit or loss

The Company measures financial assets, which are stated at fair value in subsequent periods, through profit or loss. using the business modei
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,

The Cempany is trading in derivatives which are accounted for at fair value through profit or Toss.
Effective interest meth

The effective interest method is used in the calcwlation of the amortised cost of a financial asset and in the allocation of the interest revenue in
profit or loss over the relevant period.

The effective interest rale is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash infiows through the expected life of the financial asset 1o the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset that shows the amortised cost of the financial assel, before adjusting for any loss allowance. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar apltions) but does not consider the expected credit losses. The calculation
includes alt fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial
instruments can be estimated reliably. However, when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expecled life of a financial
instrumemnt (or group of financial instruments). the Company uses the comtractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial
instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises financiat assets in case of the following:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,

+ the Company has retained the nght to recewve cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass through” arrangement: or

s the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fiows from the asset and either {a) has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset. or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset:

« if the Company has not retained control, it shall derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or habilites
any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer;

. if the Company has retained control. it shall continue to recognise the financiat asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
in the financial asset.
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Whether the Company has retained control of the transferred asset depends on the transferee's ability to sell the asset If the transferee has the
practical ability lo sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to
impose additional restrictions on the transfer, the Company has not retained control. In all other cases, the Company has retained control

Hedge accounting

The Company enters into derivative transactions, such as futures, to hedge against the risk of fluctuations in purchase and sale prices.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The fair values are estimated based on quoted market prices {Level 1) and the Company's price forecasts if quoted market prices are not
available {Level 2} The estimated fair values of these contracts are reported on a gross basis as financial assets for instruments having a
positive fair value, and financial liabilities for instruments with a negative fair value. Other derivatives that are not used to hedge against the nsk
of fluctuations in purchase and sale prices are measured at fair value {Level 1 and 2. a disclosed in Note 2.22). Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. For hedge accounting
purposes, a fair value hedge, which hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or in the far value of an
unrecognized firm commitment.
As from 2019, the Company has applied a hedging policy for gas purchase transactions, the documentation of which includes the identification
of the derivative. the hadged item, the nalure of the hedged nisk and how the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets
hedging efiecliveness requirements ({including hedging ineffectiveness analysis and hedging ratio calculation). Hedge accounting may be
applied to a hedging refationship if all of the following conditions are met in accordance 10 IFRS O

. There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument,

. The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from the above economic relationship: and

¢« The hedge ratio of the hedging relatienship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Company

actualy hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the enlity actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item

As from 1 June 2019, after the merger with Energijos Tiekimas UAB. the Company took over its haedge activily and did not apply hedge
accounting for electricity purchase transactions.

For the purpose of a fair value hedge that qualifies for hedge accounting. any gain or loss arising on the re-measurement of the hedging
instrument to fair value is recognised in the statement of profit (loss) and comprehensive income as incurred. The hedged item is accounted for
as an assel or liability based on changes in fair value associated with the hedged risk with difference recognised in the statement of profit (loss)
and comprehensive income.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is destgnated as hedged item. the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item subsequent
to its designation is recognised as an asset or a liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit (loss) and
comprehensive iIncome.

For gas purchase transaclion hedges, which do not qualify for hedge accounting, including all the electricity purchase transactions. any gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument are recognised directly in the statement of profit (loss) and
comprehensive income for the period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised. of no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting

2.10. Impairment of financial assets

Impaurment of financial assets ~ Ex| d credit losses

Credit losses incurred by the Company are calculated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash fiows that the Company expects to receive (ie all cash shortfalls). discounted at the onginal
effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial insirument through the expected
life of that financial instrument, including cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractuat terms.

Expected credit lasses show the weighled average of credit losses with the respective risks (probability) of a default occurning as the weighiz.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that resuit from all possible default events over the period from the date of initia
recognition of a financial asset to the subsequent date of settlement of the financial asset or ultimate write-off of the financial asset.

The Company seeks for lifetime expected credit losses to be recagnised before a financial instrument becomes past due Typically. credit risk
increases significantly before a financial instrument becomes past due or other lagging borrower-specific factors (for example, a modification or
restructuring) are observed. Consequently, when reasonable and supportable information that is more forward-locking than past due information
is available without undue cost or effort. it must be used to assess changes in credit risk.,

Expected credit losses are recognised by taking into consideration individually or collectively assessed credit risk of loans granted and trade
receivables. Credit risk is assessed based on all reasonable and verifiable information including future oriented infarmation.

The lifetime expected credit losses of trade receivables are assessed based on both the coltective and individual assessment basis. The
Company's management decides on the performance of the assessment on an individual basis reflecting the possibility of obtaining information
on the credit histary of a particular borrower. its financial position as at the date of assessment, including forward- looking information that would
allow to timely delermine whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk of that paricular borrower. thus enabling making
judgement on the recognition of lifelime expected credit losses in respect of that particular borrower. In the absence of reliable sources of
information on thi credit history of a particular borrower. its financial position as at the date of assessment, including forward-looking information,
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the Company measures the debt on a collective basis. The lifetime expected credit losses of trade receivables are recognised at the recognition
of amounts receivable,

When granting the loan, the Company assesses and recognises 12-month expected credi losses. In subsequent reporting periods, in case
there is no significant increase in credit risk related to the lender, the Company adjusts the balance of 12-month expected credit fosses in view
of the outstanding balance of the ioan at the measurement date. If it is determined that the financial positicn of the debtor has significantly
deteriorated compared to the position prevailing at the time of the loan issue, the Company accounts for all the ECLs over the remaining life of
the loan. The latest point at which the Company recognises all lifetime expected credit losses of the loan granted is identified when the borrower
is late to pay a periodic amount or the total debt for more than 30 days. In case of other evidence available, the Company accounts for all lifetime
expected credit losses of the loan granted regardiess of the maore than 30 days past due presumption. Loans for which lifetime expected credit
losses were calculated are considered credil-impaired financial assets.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about the following events:

{a) significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

(b} a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event,

{c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficuily, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender{s) would not otherwise consider;

{d} it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,

(e) the disappearance of an aclive market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties;

{f) financial assets are purchased or granted at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

The combined effect of several events that may occur simultaneously or subsequently throughout the term of validity of the agreement on the
financial assets may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired

The lifetime expecled credit losses of loans receivable and trade receivables is recognised in profit or foss through the contrary account of
doubtful receivables

The Company writes off the loans receivable and trade receivables when it loses the right to receive contractual cash flows from financial assets

2.11 Inventories

The Company's inventories, which include natural gas in the storage facility and liquefied natural gas terminal (hereinafter — the LNGT) remaining
at the year-end and other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of the remaining amount of natural gas
is established using the weighted average cost method. The Company's inventories. which consist of liquefied natural gas at the LNG terminal
and Klaipéda distribution station, are stated at acquisition cost The value of natural gas in storage and the cost price of natural gas shall be
calculated using a weighted average cost method. The weighted average price is calculated as the weighted average of the stock al the
beginning of the month and the purchases dunng the month. Other inventories are recognized at cost using the FIFQ methed.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash consists of cash held in the Company's bank accounts. Cash equivalents represent short-term investments (with onginal maturities of
three months or less) that are easily convertible into known cash amounts. the price risk of which is insignificant. For the purpose of the statement
of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits in current bank accounts and other highly liquid short-term investments

2.13 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments traded by the Company are the only financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Other financal habilities.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings. are initially recognised at fair value. less transaction costs,

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest
expenses are recognised using the effective interest method

Effective interest rate method 1s used to calculate amortised cost of financial liabilities and allocate interest expenses over a relevant period
The effective interest rate exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial fiability or though the relevant
shorter period.
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2.14 Employee benefits
Socal security contribution.

The Company pays social security contributions to the State Social Secunty Fund (the Fund) on behalf of its employees based on the defined
contribution plan in accordance with the local legal requirements. A defined contribution is a plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into the Fund and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the Fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior period, Social security contributions are recognised as
expenses on an accrual basis and included in payroll expenses.

Non-current empiovee benefits

Under the laws of the Republic of Lithuania. each employee of retirement age who terminates hisfher employment with the Company is entitled
to receive a one-off payment. Employee benefits are recognised in the statement of financial position and they reflect the present value of future
benefits al the date of the statement of financial position. The aforementioned non-current liability for pension benefils o employees at the date
of the statement of financial position is estimated with reference {o actuary valuations using the projected relative unit method. The present
value of the defined non-current liability for pension benefits 1o employees is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows using
the effective interest rates as set for government bonds denominated in a currency in which the benefits will be paid to employees and that have
maturity term similar to that of the related liability

Termination benefi

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee's employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Company recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of current employees under a detailed formal plan without possibitity of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Non-current benefits are recognised at present value
discounted using market interest rate

Acluarial gains or losses arising from adjustments based on experience or from changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately
within the Company's other comprehensive income in the Statement of Profit or loss and other comprehensive income. All past service cosls
are recognised immediately.

QOther employee benefi

The Company's employees receive long-service benefits. Long-term employee benefil obligation 1s recognised in the statement of financial
position and refiects the present value of defined benefit obligation at the date of the statement of financial position. The present value of defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows using the interest rates as set for government bonds deneminated
in a currency in which the benefits wilt be paid to employees and that have maturity term simitar to that of the related liability, Actuarial gains or
losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss

2.15 Lease liabilities

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019 (based on IFRS 16

Initial measurement of lease liabilily

At the commencement date, the Company measures lease liability at the present value of the Jease payments that are not paid at that date. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If the interest rate implicit in
the lease cannot be readily determined, the Company applies incremental borrowing rate

Al the commencement date. the fease payments included in the measurement of the lease katlity comprise the fallowing payments for the right
to use the underlying asset dunng the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date. fixed payments. less any lease incentives
receivable; variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. initially measured using the index or rale as al the commencement date.
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees: the exercise price of a purchase option f the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising an
oplion {o terminate the lease. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate include. for example, payments linked to a consumer
price index, payments linked to a benchmark interest rate (such as LIBOR) or payments that vary to reflect changes in market rental rates
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Subsequent measurement of lease liability

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability by: increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term shall be the amount that produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the lease liability. The periodic rate of interest is the discount rate or if applicable the revised discount rate.

After the commencement date. the Company shall recognise in profit or loss, unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of another
asset applying other applicable Standards, both: interest on the lease liability; and variable lease payments not included in the measurement of
the lease liability in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Remeasurement of lease liability

After the commencement date, the lease liability is remeasured to reflect changes to the lease payments. The Company recognises the amouni
of the remeasurement of the lease Hability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. However, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, a lessee shall recognise any remaining amount of
the remeasurement in profit or loss.

Revised discount rate

The Company remeasures ihe lease liabilily by discounling the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate, if there is a change in the
lease term. The Company determines the revised lease paymenis on the basis of the revised lease term or when there is a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset, assessed considering the events and circumstances. The Company determines the
revised lease payments to reflect the change in amounts payable under the purchase option

If there is a change in the lease term or in the assessment of an option lo purchase, the Company shall delermine the revised discount rate as
the interest rate implicit in the lease for the of the lease term, if that rate can be readily determined, or the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
al the date of reassessment, if the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.

Unchanged discoun! rate
The Company remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments, if either:

- there is a change in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee. The Company determines the revised lease
payments 1o reflect the change in amounts expected to be payable under the residual value guarantee.

- there is a change in future lease paymenls resulling from a change in an index or a rate used to determine those payments, including for
example a change to reflect changes in market rental rates following a market rent review. The Company remeasures the lease liability to reflect
those revised lease payments only when there is a change in the cash flows {i.e. when the adjustment to the lease payments takes effect).

The Company determines the revised lease payments for the remainder of the lease term based on the revised contractual payments

The Company uses an unchanged discount rate, unless the change in lease payments results from a change in floating interest rates In that
case, the lessee shall use a rewised discount rate that reflects changes in the interest rate,

L maodifications
A lessee shall account for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:

- the meadification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underiying assets: and
- the consideraticn for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the standalone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease. at the effective dale of the lease modification the Company:

- allocates the consideration in the modified contract;
- determines the lease term of the modified lease; and
- remeasure the lease hability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

For a lease madification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Company accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liabisty by:

- decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or fult termination of the lease for lease modifications that decrease
the scope of lhe lease. The Company recognises in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease
- making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset for all other lease modifications

The Company presents lease liabilities in the statement of financial position separately from other liabilities. Interest expense on the lease liability
are presented separately from the depreciation charge for the right-of-use asset. Interest expense on the lease liability 1s a component of finance
cosis, which is presented in the Statement of Profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Lease accounling policies apphed before 1 January 2019

Lease is recognised as finance lease when substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased item are transferred under
the lease terms and conditions. Al other leases are classified as operating lease.

The Company is a lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term. uniess anolher systematic basis 1s more
representative of the time pattern of the earnings process containad in the lease. Conlingent operating lease payments are recognised as
expenses as incurred

If lease incentives are received for the conclusion of operating lease agreements. such incentives are recognised as a liability. Lease expenses
are reduced by the amount of accumulated incentives on a straight-line basis, unless another systemalic basis is more representative of the
ume pattern of the earnings process contained in the lease

Energy saving solutions - Finance ease ~ the Company is a lessor. (applicable unti 2019 January 1 and subsequent periods)

The Company provides energy saving services by preparing an energy saving project, for the implementation of which it iIs necessary to install
special equipment and carry out construction works in the chent's facilities. Based on the contract with the client. acquisition of special equipment
can be financed by the client or the Company. For the contracts where acquisition of equipment and construction works is financed by the
Company. the recognised sales revenue of the system correspond to the minimum payments accumulated by the Company and allocated to
cover the value of the installed system. The acquisition cost of the installed system, net of the present value of unguaranteed residual value, is
expensed. The costs incurred in relation to negotiation and finance lease organisation at the inception of lease are expensed

Amounts receivable are accounted for at amortised cost. On nitial recognition, amounts receivable are estimated by discounting all future
payments of the client for the installed energy saving system. Subsequently. amounts receivable are estimated using the annual interest rate
which was used on initial recognition when discounting the future payments of clients, and by recognising interest income from financing
activities

Interest income from financing aclivities is recagnised over the period of lease using the effective interest rate, which was used when discounting
the future payments of clients on initial recognition. Interest income fram financing activities is accounted for irrespective of whether such interest
15 stipulated in the contract with the client

The installed systems are transferred into the ownership of a client at no extra pay following the receipt of a full payment under the contract
Operating lease — the Company is a lessee

Leases of property. plant and equipment where a significant portion of risks and rewards of ownership is retained by the lessor are classified as
operaling leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the stalement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease

Any costs (including depreciation) that were incurred while earning income from operating lease are recognised as expenses

2.16 Income tax

Income tax charge is based on profit for the year and considers deferred taxation. Tax rates and tax laws used to compute income tax expense
are those applicable as at the date of the statement of financial pesition.

In 2019, an income tax at a rate of 15 per cent was applicable in the Republic of Lithuania (in 2018 - 15 per cent).

Current year income lax

The current income tax charge is caleulaled on the basis of taxable profi for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recorded in the Statement
of Profit or loss and other comprehensive income since it does not encompass items of revenue or expenses that are subject to tax or deductible
for income tax purposes in the next year and also does not encompass items that are never subject to tax or never deduclible for income tax
purposes. A tax rate used to compute income tax is that applicable at the beginning of the financial year.

Tax losses can be carried forward for an indefinite period, except for losses incurred as a result of disposal of securities and/or derivatives. The
losses from disposal of securities and/or derivatives can be carried forward for 5 consecutive years and can only be used to reduce the taxable
income earned from the transactions of the same nature,

The carrying forward of tax losses is discontinued if the Company ceases the activities that gave rise to these losses. except when the Company
ceases the activities for reasons that are beyond its control.

Tax losses can be carried forward belween the group companies that meet the requirements laid down in the Republic of Lithuania Law on
Corporate Income Tax. With effect from 1 January 2014, tax losses available for carry forward can be used 10 reduce taxable income of the
current tax year by maximum 70%.

L] a . - T 0
p14 |gn|t|s he Company's Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 3



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounis
in the financial statements. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, whereas deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be ulilised
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are not recognised when temporary differences arise from goodwill or from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting, nor taxable
profit.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of a deferred lax asset at each reporting date and reduces it to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be availabie to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be ulilised. Any such reduction Is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply to the period when the assel is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod.
The measurement of deferred income tax liabilities and deferred income lax assels reflects the tax consequences that follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the current year income tax assets against
liabilities and when they are related 1o income taxes levied by the same taxation authorities, and when the Company intends to settle current
year income tax assets and the current year income tax liabililies on a net basis.

Current and deferred income tax for the peried

Current and deferred income tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except to the extent it relates 10 items recognised not in profit or loss {in
other comprehensive income or direclly in equity). In this case income tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Transfer of accrued tax losses

Upon transfer of the accumulated tax losses to Group companies, The Company derecognises deferred tax asset on the tax losses carried
forward and recognizes the consideration receivable in the Statement of Profit or loss and other comprehensive income under '‘Deferred income
tax expense’.

The consideration received is presented in the cash flow statement under 'Income tax (paid)'.

2.17  Revenue recognition and related significant management judgment applied

The Company recognises revenue at the time and to the extent that the transfer of goods or services 1o customers would show the amount
which would correspond 16 a consideration, the right to which is expected to be obtained by the Company in exchange for those goods or
services. When recognising revenue, the Company takes into consideration terms of contracts signed with customers and all significant facts
and circumstances, including the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty relating to cash flows arising from the contract with the customer

a) Revenue from supply of natural gas

Revenue from supply of natural gas to non-household customers is recognised on a monthly basis referring to the readings of measuring devices
provided by them and verified by the distribution system operator (an accrual basis). Revenue from supply of natural gas to household customers
is recognised on a monthly basis referring to the readings of measuring devices provided by them and adjustments to estimated mismatches
between quantities of gas declared by household customers and guantities of gas used by them {an accrual basis}).

The Company does not recognise revenue from LNGT fee (not related to dedicated LNG supply function described bellow) and gas distribution
with respect 1o those transactions in which it acls as an agent because

a) The Company is nol responsible for the LNGT projectsfinitiatives and development and maintenance of gas distribution networks,
accordingly not responsible that the LNGT and gas distribution service funds are used for their intended purpose

By  The Company is nol exposed to any inventory risk
¢} The Company has no legal power to establish the LNGT security component and pricing of gas distribution services.

For these reasons, the Company accounis for the collected and paid LNGT funds and gas distribution component (with exception to bellow
described dedicated LNG supply component) by offsetting. Accordingly. the amounts are accounted at net basis.,

b) Revenue from natural gas balancing services

The transaction of the balancing of natural gas provides two parts: the transmission of liquefied natural gas at the fixed value of natural gas as
established in the agreement with an obligation to repurchase it. and the balancing service. which comprises the suppliedfaccepted quantity of
natural gas at the fee eslablished in lhe agreement The recipient of the service assumes the natural gas price risk

Revenue from sale of services for the quantity of natural gas suppliediaccepted, i.e. the balancing service, is recognised as sales revenue in
the Statement of Profit or loss and other comprehensive income each month with reference to the data on the guantity of natural gas
acceptedfsupplied each month submitted on a monthly basis
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{c)  Revenue from the LNGT security component

Since 2019, UAB Ignitis has been providing the designated LNG supply function. The company took over these activities after the UAB Ignitis
Grupe group company LITGAS was merged with it. Profitability of designated supply activities is regulated by the National Energy Regulatory
Council (herginafter “ine Council”). The Company generates a portion of ils revenue from the sale of designated LNG supply quantities to
commercial customers, with the remainder covered through the LNG terminal security component. The security component of the LNG Terminal
depends on the projected gas prices and other cosls for the upcoming year, the forecasted gas supply volumes, the deviation of the profit earned
in previous periods from the regulated amount and ather things. Actual cosls incurred by the Company during the year may differ from those
eslimated when approving prices and the aclual amount of supply may differ from the forecast. As a result, the Company’s actual profit may
deviate from the regulated level and the difference will affect the future LNG terminal security component and thus future revenue. The Company
does not recognize a regulated asset or liability that is intended to equalize current year profits to a regulated level if the difference affects future
supply prices and is recovered / refunded in the future provision of services

Revenue from security component {for designated LNG supply function) is recognised with reference to the reports received from natural gas
transmission system operator (hereinafter ~ TSO) who administers collection and distribution of these payments. The Company issues invoices
to TSO based on the reports received.

Revenue from security component forms part of regulated revenue from the designated supply activity. Pursuant to Article 5.2 of the Law on
LNG Terminal, all users of natural gas transmission system (including the end users) are required to pay additional security component together
with other fees payable for natural gas transmission services. The payments are coltected by the TSO direcily from the consumers or from
natural gas suppliers in case the consumers have no direct contracts with the TSO. The Commission decides annually on the amount of the
security component in proportion to the quantities of natural gas consumed by the users (either through direct consumption or resale). Based
on the Commission's Resolution, part of the collected TSO funds is transferred 1o the Company.

(d}  Reloading and storage services

The Company. acling as an intermediary in the provision of LNG retoading and storage services, is not exposed to the risk of stock price
fluctuations, and therefore does not register LNG gas purchased for reloading purposes as its own inventory, and recognizes the service income
{on the net basis in lhe statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

{e) Revenue from supply of electricity

Revenue from supply of electricity to household cuslomers and entities is recognised in each reporting period under presented invoices, in which
the volume of electricity consumed is calculated. The volume of eleclricity consumed is calculated on the basis of declared amounts or actual
meter readings. The Company does not recognise revenue and expenses from electricity trading in the power exchange with respect to those
transactions in which it acts as an agent. The Company acls as an agent for PSO service and electricity distribution (including transfer) fee
components and does not recognise revenue from it because

a) The Company is nol responsible for the PSO projectsfinitiatives and development and maintenance of electricity distribution and
transmission networks, accardingly not responsible that the PSO and electricity distribution {(including transmission) service funds are
used for their intended purpose.

b} The Company is not exposed to any inventory risk
¢} The Company has no legal power to establish the PSO component and pricing of electricity distribution services.
For this reason, the Company accounts for the collected PSQ and electricity distribution (including transmission) funds on the nel basis
{f) Revenue from elactricity balancing
Revenue from electicity balancing services is recognized when the services are provided.

In order to balance the electricity supply schedule, the Company sells the electricity balancing service. Electricity balancing service is providing
of the missing electricily or acceptance of excess electricity, thus ensuring the optimal amount of electricity in the distribution systems.

Service for the amount of electricily supplied / received i.e. balancing services is recognized as income in the Statement of Profit or loss and
olher comprehensive income on a monthly basis based on monthly reperied amounts of electricity received / supplied.

(q) Revenue from guaranteed energy savings

Performance obligations arising from contracls on energy saving solutions (for example, to upgrade existing street fighting) concluded with
customers are considered to be salisfied over a period of time and revenue is recognized over the period if at least one of the following criteria
is met: {a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the entity performs
{b) the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the assel is created or enhanced; ar (c) the
Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company, and the Company has an enforceable night to
payment for performance completed to date. When the final outcome of this kind of a contract can be measured reliably, revenue and expenses
for each contract are resognised on the basis of the stage of completion of the contract. The Company applies the cost method to measure
progress because there is a direct relationship between the Company’s efforts (i.e. based on hours spent and materials consumed) and the
outcome achieved, which gives a fair view, The stage of completion is assessed based on the proportion of the costs incurred in fulfilling the
contract up to date ever to the total estimated costs of the contract. When the outcome of a contract cannot be measured reliably (for example,
in the early stages of a contract), revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable When
contract costs are likely to exceed contract revenue, a loss is recognized immediately in profit or foss.
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(h) interest income

Interest iIncome 1s recognised using effective inlerest rate method for financial assets accounted at amortised cost method. Interest received
(sucl. VAT) is recorded in the statement of cash flows as cash flows from investing activities.

2.18 Expense recognition

Expenses are recognised on an acerual basis during the reporting period in which they are incurred, regardless of the moment of cash payments
made. Expenditure incurred during the reporting period, which cannol be atiributed directly to income earned and which will not generate any
income in future reporting periods, are recognised as expenses when incurred.

The amount of costs is usually estimated by the amount of money paid or payable, excluding VAT.

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in profit or loss for that period in which they are incurred since the Company does not have
assets qualifying for borrowing costs capilalisation.

2.19 Offsetting

For the purpose of the financial stalements, assels and liabilities, income and expenses are not offset. unless such offsetling is required by
IFRS and described in these accounting policies.

2.20 Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed in the financial statements unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow or economic benefits is probable

2.21 Related parties

Related parties are defined as shareholders, Board members, their close family members, state-owned enterprises (for disciosure purposes
only those companies under the control of the Lithuanian Ministry of Finance with whom significant transactions were conducted or with
significant outstanding balances) and companies that directly or indirectly {through the intermediary) control the Company or are controlled by.
or are under common control with the Company, provided such relationship empowers one of the parties to exercise control or significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

The Company has chosen te apply the exemption provided for in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures, regarding disclosure of transactions with.
or under the control of, public authorities, The Company discloses all significani transactions with the Republic of Lithuania represented by the
Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Lithuania or entities controlled by the Republic of Lithvama.

2.22 Fair value

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an orderly fransaction between market
participants at the measurement dale. The fair value measurement is based on the assumption that selling an asset or settiing a liability eceurs
either in the primary market for a given asset or liability. or in the absence of a primary market in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when acquiring the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest. There are three levels in the fair value hierarchy: The Company uses valuation techniques thal are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs

All assels and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
provided below. The hierarchy is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level 1: fair value of assets is based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markeis for identical assets or liabilibies.
Level 2: fair value of assets is based on other observable market data, directly or indirectly

Level 3. fair value of assets is based on non-observable market data.

2.23  Business combination

Business combination applying IFRS 3 fentities not under common control)

Acquisition of subsidiaries that are not under common controd is accounted for using the acquisition method. When the acquisition method is
applied the consideration transferred in a business combination is measured as fair value of net assets transferred to the former owners of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date,
except that

+ deferred tax assets or habilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 and IAS 19 respectively.

« liabilities or equily instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the
Company entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with [FRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see below): and

« assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS & are measured in accordance with that Standard.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Company
reports provisignal amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounls are adjusted during the
measurement period (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) . or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that. if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment. the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable nel assets assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration ransferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any). the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Contingent consideration

When the consideration transferred by the Company in a business combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the ¢ontingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-dale fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.

Changes in fair value of the conlingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the ‘measurement period” about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do nol qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent considerahen is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequenl settlement 1s accounted for within equity. Other contingent consideration is rfemeasured to fair value at
subsequent reparting dates with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Business combination is achieved in stages

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Company's previously held interests (including joint operations) in the acquired enlity
are remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss. if any. is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss. where such treatment would be appropriate If that interest were disposed of.

Business combination of entities under common control

For a business combination of entities under common control the following methods are applied:
{a} the acquisition method set outin IFRS 3; or
{b) the pooling of interests’ method.

In selecting which method to apply to the accounting for business combinations of enlities under common control, the Company assesses
whether there is a “business substance” for which the following crileria are considered:

s {he purpose of the transaction:

« the involvement of outside parties in the transaction, such as non-controlling interests or other third parties;
» whether or not the transaction is conducted at fair value;

» the existing activities of the entities involved in the transaction; and

» whether or not it is bringing entities together into a ‘reporting entity’ that did not exist before
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Accordingly. if the analysis of such criteria doesn't show that the transaction has a commercial substance to the merging parties, the Company
applies the pooling of interest methed in such transaction and the Company is consistent with the method applied. By applying the pooling of
interests' method, the business combination of entities under common control is accounted according to the following procedures:

« the assets and liabilities of the entities in business combinations are stated at their carrying amounts equal to those reported in the
consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent company,

« no newly arising goodwill 1s recogrized on a business combination;

+ any differences between consideration paid and the carying amount of net assets acquired as at the date of acquisition is recognized
directly in equily within retained earnings

Considerations and assessmenis performed by the management of the Company for the determination whether the business combination of
entities under common control has a commercial substance are disclosed in the Note 34

224  Events after the end of the reporting period

Events after the end of the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the reporting date (adjusting
events) are accounted for in the financial statements  Events after the end of the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes when their effect is material

3 Financial assets and financial liabilities and risk management

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company’s financial assets comprised investments into subsidiaries and associates. lease receivables
derivatives. trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and financial liabilities included trade payables for acquired natural gas and
services related to the natural gas supply and for other goods and services, derivatives, borrowings and other current amounts payable and
liabilities.

Credit risk

Amounts receivable from the Company's largest debtor represent 11% (31 December 2018: 4%) of the Company's tolal Irade receivables. Five
major debtors of the Company represent 25% (31 December 2018: 12%) of the Company's total trade recewvables. The largest customers of
the Company are large regulated energy producers or large industrial companies. The Company's debtors are powerful and stable companies

The Company has the Risk Management Commiltee responsible for assessing the risk level of potential customers based on available
information and expert conclusions, in view of which it reaches an optimal decision as to the possibilities of entering into electricity or gas sale
and purchase contract, The Committee defines criteria for the assessment of solvency of customers and arranges a financialiexpert verification
with competent authorities. Based oninformation obtained, the Committee makes decisions as to the existencefabsence of risk in respect of the
relevant customers. The agreements on purchase and sale of electricity or gas are concluded with customers in view of the customer solvency
risk assessment by applying customised seltliement terms: longer settlement periods are applied to customers with a lower risk and customers
with a higher risk are subject to more stringent settlement terms and {or) additional collaterals, inciuding funds depesited in the Company's
account. sureties, bills of exchange. etc. To manage the risk of counterparty default, the Company applies an approved Procedure for the
Assessment and Managemenl of Customer Solvency.

The Company measures receivables from Group enlities on an individual basis, where the financial position and credit risk of each borrower
are measured individually by analysing the borrower's financial statements, settlement discipline and other publicly available information about
the debtor that may be affected by the debtor's credit assessment. The Company applies O per cent of the expected credit loss ratia to
receivables from related companies due to immaterial credit risk.

The Company diversifies ils free liquid funds held at banks and enters into transactions only with those financial institutions that have assigned
to themselves or have been assigned by their controlling banks a long-term credit rating of not lower than "A-" accerding to the raling agency
Fitch Ratings or equivalent rating of other rating agencies.

Following the prudence criterion, the Company aims that not more than ene-third of available monetary funds are held in the accounts of one
financial institution for the period longer than 80 days. In a short period, not longer than 90 calendar days. due to objective reasens the Company
may dewate from the latter limit, yet it aims that in any period not more than a half of available monetary funds are held in the accounts of one
financial institution.

Interes! rate risk

L ) [ YL T * H .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

3 Financial assets and financial liabilities and risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk mainly arises from current borrowings {that may be necessary to balance out the working capital) and from guarantees issued
that are necessary to secure the fulfilment of liabilities arising from trading activities. As at 31 December 2019, the Company paid due interest
for the part of the credit line of OP Corporate Bank plic which was used to secure the issuing of guarantees and letters of credit, SC SEB bankas
and Luminor Bank AS under guarantee limit agreements, Ignitis group for long-term financing agreements and for the limit of the credit which
was used to balance the working capital under the group account (cashpool). The Company did not use any derivatives to hedge against any
interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2019, the loans with fixed interest amounted to EUR 3,916 thousand (there were no such loans as at 31 December 2018),
and all the remaining loans {Note 20) were subject to a variable interest rate related to EURIBOR

The table below discloses the sensilivity of the Company's pre-tax profit to possible changes in interest rates. with all other variables held
constant (changing the inferest rate). Except for the current year's profit, there is no impact on the equity of the Company.

Increasefdecrease, impact an profit
percentage points before tax
2019
EUR R 1] {145)
EUR 0,15 146
2018
EUR 0,15 (34)
EUR 015 34
Licuidity risk

The Company’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have available funding of committed credit facilities to meet its
sommitments at a given date. The Company's hquidity {total current assets/tolal amounts payable within one year and current liabilities) and
quick ratios ({total current assels — invenlories) / total amounts payable within one year and current liabilities) as at 31 December 2019 were
107 and 0.80, respectively (31 December 2018: 0 83 and 0.67, respectively).

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on undiscounted contractual payments.

Past due frem 1 Past due from

On demand

to 30 days 31 to 90 days

Lease habilities 13 26 447 436
Loans and interest payabie o, 758 13514 94 388 114,658
Derivatives - 2.528 - 2,528
Trade payables - 40,055 - 40,055
Balance as at 31 December 2019 . 5,774 56,123 84,833 167,727

Lease liabilites - 5 B

Loans and interest payable - - 22,497 - 22497
Derivatives : - 17 17
Trade payables - - 75,301 - 75 301
Balance as at 31 December 2018 - - 97,798 17 7815

Derivatives are realised on net basis, therefore derivatives presented in the above table on the net basis as well

. PR : 7 . ’
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All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

3 Financial assets and financial liabilities and risk management (continued)

Foreiqn exchange risk

To avoid foreign exchange risk, the Company seeks to conclude the natural gas purchase and supply agreements in the same currency
Financial assets and financial liabilities are denominated in EUR.

Rizk of fluctuations in purchase prices of nalural gas and eleciricil
RIS ICilY

The purchase prices of natural gas and electricity depend on the prices of these resources in the global market. In the opinion of the Company's
management, this risk is effectively managed in the following manner: the price of natural gas te non-househeld consumers is established on
the basis of the same values of variable components, whereas the price to household consumers is established by including the developments
in the prices of electricity and gas into the mechanism for the establishment of regulated prices. A fixed gas and electricity price was established
for portion of non-household customers. In this case needed, natural gas and electricity price nisk 18 managed through derivatives

Disclosure of financial nstruments subsequently measured at fair value

The Company keeps records of derivatives at fair value. On 31 December 2019, the Company accounted for EUR 5.269 thousand unrealised
derivative gain in Derivative assets and EUR 2,528 thousand unrealised derivative loss in Derivative liabilities captions. On 31 December 2019
the breakdown of derivative assets and liabilities by levels of the fair value hierarchy was as follows:

1 level 2 level 3 level

i tata

CQuotes in active Other indicators published Unpublished
markets directly or indirectly indicators

Derivative assets - 5,269 - 3,269

Derivatives liabilities - 2,528 - 2.528

On 31 December 2018, the breakdown of derivatives assets and liabilities by levels of the fair value hierarchy was as follows:

1 level 2 level 3 level

Company In total

Quotes in active Otherindicators published Unpublished
markets directly or indirectly indicators

Derivative assets 412 o 412

Derivatives liabilities - 17 5 17

Disclosure of fair value of financial instruments subsequently not measured at fair value

The Company's principal financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value are finance lease receivables, issued loans, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, long-term borrowings. Fair value is defined as the amount for which an assel or service could be
exchanged, or a liability setiled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models or option pricing models, as appropriate

The following methods and assumptions are used to measure each type of financial asset and liability:

- The amount of cash and cash equivalents. short-term trade and other receivables, short-term borrowings, short-term trade payables and other
payables and short-term borrowings approximates their fair value and is therefore attributed to the first levet of the hierarchy

- The fair value of non-current receivables (finance lease and loans 1ssued and payables is determined by reference to the market price of the
same or similar loans or {o the interest rate applicable on the same matunity date. Their fair value approximates their carrying amount where the
discount rates on these accounts payable correspond to current market rates and are therefore attributed to the second level of the hierarchy

The Company's financial assets and financial liabililies are considered to approximate their fair value.
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3 Financial assets and financial liabilities and risk management {continued)

Capital managemen

For capital management purposes the Company’s capital consists of share capital. legal reserve and retained earnings, The primary objective
of the Company’s capital managemenl is to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements. requiring 1o keep
respeclive capital ratios in order to preserve its business and maximise return {o the shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure and make adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the operating risks
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, to repay capital to shareholders or
issue new shares

Pursuant to the Lithuanian Republic Law on Companies. the share capital of a private limited liability company must be not less than EUR 2.5
thousand, and the shareholders’ equity must be not lower than 50% of the Company's autharised share capital. As at 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018. the Company complied with these requirements.

The Board of ignitis Group UAB approved a common dividend policy, which sets uniform principles for the payment of dividends for all the group
companies. The dividend policy is ane of capital risk management tools. Based on the newly approved policy. distribution of dividends proposed
by the Company will depend on the ratio of return on equity and net profit earned. In accordance with the dividend policy. appropnation of profit
for the payment of dividends for the financial year or a period shorter than the financial year will depend on the ratio of return on equity, the
Company's availability of financial resources for payment of dividends. implementation of economic projects imporiant for the State and other
significant circumstances. Between 60% and 85% of net profit is appropriated for the payment of dividends. depending on the ratio of return on
equity at the end of the reporting period.

’ A company is not obliged to distribute dividends only when it incurs net loss. A company will not pay any dividends when its financial
debts at the end of the reporting period are equal 1o or exceed four imes EBITDA amount for the last twelve months as from the end of the
reporting period.

. Dividends will not be paid if the Company's equity (after the payment of dividends} becomes lower than the sum of its share capital,
legal reserve, revaluation reserve and reserve for acquisition of own shares, and aiso if a company becomes insolvent or would become insclvent
upon payment of dividends The Company will also be able not to pay dividends if its ratie of financial debts lo equity becomes equal 1o or
exceeds 1.0.

4 Change in management judgment on applying accounting methods and finalisation of fair
value measurement of assets acquired during the business combination completed in
previous period

PSO and Electricity Dustribution (including transmission}

Public service obligations {(PSQ) and electricity distribution {(including transmission) (further — transfer} funds are an integral part of the electricity
tariff to the consumer. The Company collecls the PSO and electricity transfer funds from electricity cusiomers. Collected PSO and electricity
transfer funds are transferred to Energijos Skirstymo Operatorius AB (heremafter - ESO). which then transfers PSO funds to the PSO fund
administrator. The PSO funds are used to support and promote local produchion from renewable energy sources. to secure reserves of the
electricity system at designated power plants ensuring system reserves and the state’s energy security, as well as to provide other services
related to public interest. The list of services supported by the PSO is determined by the Government of the Republic of Lithuania. ESO s
responsible for operation of efectricity distribution system and thus electricity transfer service

The PSO and electricily transfer funds as integral part of electricity tariff were not identified as a separate performance obligations. The provision
of electricity as a whole. including electricity transfer and PSO was treated as one performance obligation (neither PSO nor transfer components
cannot be separated) having considered that customer cannot benefit alone from electricity without transfer or PSO component and vice versa
Following the above. the Management treated the Company as Principal in relation to the PSO and electricity transfer service.

During 2019, the Company changed the method of accounting for the PSO and electricity transfer service by treating the Company as an Agent
Such decision has been taken after extensive analysis of relevant industry practice and taking into consideration the facts, that the Company is
not responsible for the PSO projects/initiatives and development and maintenance of electricity distribution system. accordingly not responsible
that the PSO and eleciricity transfer funds are used for their intended purpose. Moreover. the Company is nol exposed 10 any inventory risk, as
well as the Company has no legal power to establish pricing of the PSO and electricity transfer service,

A change in accounting treatment allows a better comparison of the Company’'s performance with that of similar entities (especially when the
PSO and electricity transfer funds are excluded from the lariffj. This change in accounting treatment is applied retrospectively with corrections
in comparalive information presented in the table below
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4 Change in management judgment on applying accounting methods and finalisation of fair
value measurement of assets acquired during the business combination completed in
previous period (continued)

LNGT and Gas Distribution

Pursuant to Asticie 5 2 of the Law on LNG Terminal, all users of natural gas transmission system (including the end users) are required to pay
additional secunty component together with other fees payable for natural gas. The payments are collected by the transmission system operator
{hereinafter "the TSO") directly from the customers or from natural gas suppliers in case the customers have no direct contracts with the TSO
Ignitis UAB acts as a natural gas supplier that collects the LNGT security component from customers.

The LNGT security component from these customers was recognised by the Company in the Stalement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income under the caption “Revenue”. and after transfer of these funds to the TS0, under the caption "Expense’

in the course of its gas trading aclivities, the Company also collects funds from customers for the gas distribution service and transfers these
funds to the gas distribution system operator. The Company recognised these funds in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income under the caption “Revenue”, and after transfer of these funds to the operator, under the caption “Expense’”.

In 2019, the Company changed the method of accounting for the LNGT and gas distribution services by treating the Company as an Agent in
relation to these services. Such decision has been taken after extensive analysis of relevant industry practice and taking into consideration the
facts, that the Company is not responsible for the LNGT projectsfinitiatives and development and mamtenance of gas distribution networks
accordingly not responsible that the LNGT and gas distribution service funds are used for their intended purpose. The Company is not exposed
to any inventory risk. as well as the Company has no legal power to establish the LNGT security component and pricing of gas distribution
services

The change in accounting treatment allows a better companson of the Company's performance with that of similar entities. The change in
accounting treatment is applied retrospectively with correction of comparative information shown in the table below
Net Net Net
presentation presentation presenta 2018
of electricity of gas tien of [restated)
transfer distribution LNGT

2018 Net

{before presentation
correction} of PSO

Revenue and other revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers 311 653 {11.799} {36.345) {34.858) {19.903) 208,754
Other revenue - - B R R .

311,659 (11,799} {36,3486) (34,858) (19,903} 208,754
Costof sales (311,659} 11,799 36,345 34,658 19 903 {208,754)

NET PROFIT (LOSS) - - . - - -

The change in accounting treatment did not affect the Company’s Statement of Financial Position, statements of cash fiows and changes in
equity for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Fmatsation of the fair value measurement for a busine mbination (PPA

In 2019, at the end of measurement period of the business combination. the management completed the fair value measurement of the public
supply business acquired from ESO on 1 October 2018 in accordance with paragraph 45 of IFRS 3. As a result of finalization of purchase price
allocation the following corrections in fair value of assets and hatilities assumed were recorded

Provisional PPA of

business acquired A (R
N Finalisation business acquired
as at 1 October
. cof PPA as at 1 October
2018 as previously
2018
reported

Fair value of purchase price 27,441 - 27 441
Le{.s fair value of net assets {except for intangible assets) acquired. out of (2.337) [858)
which {3.195)
Trade and other recevables (11.712) - {11,712)
Trade and other payables 1,499 - 1.499
Advances received and deferred tncorme 7.876 {B858) 7.018
Less. faw value of chient contracts and relationships* intangible assets identified (24 185)
during a business combenation {24,185
Less wnite-off of immaterial goodwilk recognised in a business combination Z (61) (61}
Provisional goodwill recognised in a business combination 25 104 (25 104) -
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4 Change in management judgment on applying accounting methods and finalisation of fair
value measurement of assets acquired during the business combination completed in
previous period (continued)

* Upon finalisation of PPA an intangible asset of client contracts and relationships was recognised as at the date of a business combination

The identified intangible asset comprise of two components for which the management of the Company identified different useful Jives as
disclosed below

Amortisation period

Components of client contracts and relationships Acquisition cost -
(in years)
Client contracts and relationships (excess profit from client contracts) 21,045 5
Client contracts and relationships 3140 15
Total 24,185

Due to above. the Company has corrected the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for 2018 by increased amortisation
expenses by EUR 736 theusand and recognising goodwill impairment of EUR 61 thousand at the date of business cornbination. The above
finalisation of PPA also decreased deferred tax assel caption by EUR 70 thousand as at 31 December 2018 with corresponding entry to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Net impact of the mentioned adjustments to the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for 2018 amounts to EUR 887 thousand

For the purpose of income tax, the Company has recognized tax goodwill of EUR 26.246 thousand, with amortization period of 15 years

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial information in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and costs and contingencies. Future
events may cause the assumplions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effect of any changes in estimales will be recorded in the
financial statements when determinable.

Overdeclaration of electricity and gas revenues and expenses

Based on the Company’s historical data, it was identified that household consumers tend to declare a higher electricity consumption in the last
months of the year than was actually consumed when electricity prices increase. Since the Company’s revenue from electricily sales depends
on the elactricity consumption data declared. overdeclaration results in increase of the Company’s revenue, therefore, the Company needs (o
eslimate the amount of the overdeclared consumption to estimate the amount of deferred income The estmale is based on historical
consumption data. All the assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. For mere mformation, see Nole 24

Based on the reporls submitted by the gas distribution operator, the Company accounts for the difference between the amount of gas distributed
by the operators and the amount of gas consumed and declared by household customers on a monthly basis. For more information. see
Note 24.

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assels are recognised for all unused tax losses carried forward in the statement of the financial position when it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the lemporary differences can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred income tax assets that can be recognised, based upen the likely tiring and level of fulure taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies (Note 32)

Assessment of impairment of mnvestments in subsidiaries

Based on significant management judgement and analysis performed there is no indication of impairment of investment in Ignitis Polska Sp
20.0. The actual result for 2019 is a profit before tax of EUR 421 thousand. The management estimate that the subsidiary do not have impairment
indications, therefore no recoverable value assessment was performed and no impairment was recognized for the investment into above
mentioned subsidiary {Note 9)

Taking into account Ignitis Latvija SIA operating results (loss-making activity). the nvestment was tested for impairment. Management has made
an assessment of recoverable value by calculating value-in-use (VIU) of the mentioned subsidiary by using the discounted cash flows method
Assessment of VIU has been basad on significant management estimates

e Discounted Cash Flows {DCF)} method has been used with cash flows forecasted over 10-year period of 202(-2029;
»  Average revenue growth has been estimated at 11.6% YoY taking as a baseline budget for 2020 with average EBITDA
margin of 1.1% and NWC of EUR 3.6 milhion;

«  WACC of 17,6% {pre-tax discount rate) and terminal growth rate of 2% has been applied to the model;

a L] . a . 1
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5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Based on assumptions used and calculations made by management, the recoverable value of Ignitis Lalvija StA was assessed to be lower than
the book value of investment by EUR 2.5 million which was accounlted for as impairment of invesiment inte subsidiary. The total investment in
Ignitis Lalvija SIA before impairment was EUR 5.5 million, carrying value of the invesiment after the impairment of EUR 2.5 million is EUR 3
million {Note 9).

Since the management estimate of recoverable value of investment inte subsidiary includes significant assumptions. the below sensitivity of
valuation to changes in key vatuation inputs has been provided:

. Drop of average EBITDA margin by 10% to 1% would further lower the recoverable value by EUR 0.9 million:
. Increase of average NWC by 70% would further lower the recoverable value by EUR 3 million;
. Increase of WACC 1o 23.5% would further lower the recaverable value by EUR 2 3 million.

ECL for accounts receivable and finance lease receivable

Impairment loss of amounts receivable was determined based on the management's estimates on recoverabilty and timing relating to the
amounts that will not be collectable under the original terms of receivables. Judgement is exercised based on financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial recrganisation and default or delinquency in payments (Nole 14).

Determining the fair value of derivatives

The Company attributes derivatives purchased on the Nasdaq Commodilies Exchange to Level 2 of the Fair Value Hierarchy, since they are
valued based on calculations made by management which are supported with published prices of relevant products on the Nasdaq Commodities
Exchange (active market).

The management of the Company attributes derivatives linked to the price zone of Lithuania / Latvia and Estonia / Finland to level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy. Derivatives purchased directly from other market participants {Over-The-Counter Contracls) and PTRs (Physical Transmission
Rights} are valued on the basis of Nasdaq Commodities stock exchange quotations, with the addition of expertly assessed differences in pnce
zones {potential risks). Simitarly, the Company's management attributes derivatives related 1o gas price indices to level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy. Derivatives are purchased directly from the best-priced brokers that meet the credit rating requirements of the Company's Treasury
Management Policy.

Application of IFRS h mpany’s management io a nt for mergers and acquistion dformed during 2018-2019

A number of mergers and acquisilions have been completed during 2018-2019. Accounting policy of Ignitis Group UAB states that business
combinations should be accounied for under IFRS3 acquisition accounting as a standard method, therefore acquired assets and habilties are
valued al fair values at the date of the acquisition.

On 1 October 2018, public supply activities have been acquired from ESO. Management concluded that this transaction is subject to IFRS 3
definition of acquisition, because Company gained full control and benefits over the assets acquired and because payment has been settled in
money. As described in note 34, intangible asset has been recognized as parl of the acquisition. For fair value valuation, Company’s
management has used following assumptions:

1} The amount of EUR 21,045,000 rising from contracts with customers is equal to accumulated difference between regulated electricity
acquisition price as part of electricity tariff and actual price paid in electricity spot markets. calculated al the moment of acquisition
{nole 34) and has been deemed to be collectable over the next regulatory period after the date of acquisition, therefore no discount
rate has been applied.

2y Valuation of customer relationships at EUR 3,140,000 (note 34), is based on following assurmplions:

(a) DCF modelling over the peried 2019-2033:

(b) Deregulation of public supply from 2021, assuming all public supply custorners are able lo choose their electricity supplier
This assumption was valid at the date of acquisition and was applied to the business case and DCF modelling. Any delays
or changes to the deregulation model may increase value of the asset due to lower competilion and better customer
retention.

(¢) Double-digit loss of customers in 2021 and a further continuous single-digit customer base delerioration due to competition
and demographics in the following years;

(d) WACC of 13.6% (pre-tax discount rate}, assuming cost of equity at 14.6% with 91% weight, and cost of debt at 3.15%
percent with 9% weight.

{e) Stable supply margin, comparable to that set in 2019 by the regulator:

(i NWC stable at 1.1% to revenue.

Sensitivities of this modelling are following (assuming no other changes to the model):

(a) Decrease of supply margin by 30% would lower fair value to 0 (zero) EUR;
{b) Decrease of volumes by 10% in every year would lower fair value by EUR 1.6 million;
{c) WACC at 17.6 % (pre-tax discount rate) would further lower fair value by EUR 0.8 million,
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5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Prepayment for natural gas

According to the provisions in agreement signed in 2018 with the gas supplier Gazprom. Company did not withdraw all the dedicated quantity
of natural gas under the take-or-pay (hereinafter - TOP) condition. Following the requirements of the TOP condition, at the beginning of 2019
Company made a prepayment to Gazprom, which was calculated as 75% of the not withdrawn gas quantity for 2018 multiplied by average gas
price of 2018, a total of EUR 7 576 thousand. The prepayment was recorded in the Company's statement of financial position under the
prepayments caption. The remaining 25% part of the TOP condition quantity will be paid during the delivery period at market price. The Company
is obliged to purchase the TOP quantity within 3 years - until the end of 2021,

Since the realization of 75% part of the TOP contract is subject to variable price risk, Company's management have been using derivative
financial instruments to hedge the fair value of the contract. The Company has applied far value hedge accounting and recognized an unrealised
firm commitment offsetting the prepayment in amount of 2 465 EUR thousand with revaluation loss accounted in the statement of comprehensive
income under the caption Cost of sales, while 2 465 EUR gain from derivatives designated to hedging were accounted under the same caption.
Company plans to withdraw the 2018 TOP quantity by December 2020.
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6  Intangible assets

Dynamics of the Company's intangible assets during 2019 and 2018 provided helow

| ibl
ntangible assets Software

identified during Patents and In totai

Computer software projects in

progress

business combination
(restated)*

licences. restated)*

As at 31 December 2018

Acquisition cost (restated)” 24,185 580 13 - 24778
Accumulated amortisation (restated)’ (736) (206) (4} - (946)

Net book valt:e as at 31 December 2018 25.449 274 9 R 23,832
{restated)

As at 31 Decernber 2018

Opening net baok walue - 148 1 - 149
Additons - 31 10 - an
Additions related to business combenation
{Note 4) (restated)” ikt : - : el
Amortisation charge (restated)” (736) {B5) {2) - (823)
Net book 'value as at 31 December 2018 23,449 274 9 ) 23,832
(restated)
As at 31 December 2019
Opening net book value 23449 374 9 - 23,832
Additions - 13 - 365 496
Increase related to business combinaticns 16.395 187 . 167 16.748
under commaon control (Note 34)
Reclassification between categories - 532 - (532) -
Ameortisation charge (4,996) (173 (3 - {5.172)
Net book value as at 31 December 2019 34,848 1,051 1 - 35,905

As at 31 December 2019
Acquisition cost 24,185 1,243 14 25442
Acquisition cost of assets laken over ai business

combination under common control {Note 34) 19,773 430 £ &
Accumutated amortisation (5,732) (379) (a) - (6.119)
Accumulated amoertisation of assets taken over
at business combination under common control {3,378) (243) - {3.621)
iNote 34) S
Net book value as at 31 December 2019 34,848 1,061 6 - 35,905
As at 31 December 2019
Acquisition costin iotal 43,958 1.673 14 - 45,645
Accumulated amartisation in total {(9.110) (622} [£:3] - {9,740}
Net book value as at 31 December 2019 34,848 1,051 ;] - 35,906

« Same of the amaunts isted above differ from the amounts within the financial statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2018 and reflect
the adjustments to intangible assets acquired in a business combination valuation disclosed in Note 4

in 2015, UAB Energijos Tiekimas (ET) (as the entity was called at the time) acquired two activities from Lietuvos Energijos Gamyba AB (now
AB Ignitis Gamyba): a balancing activity and a derivative trading aclivity. Intangible assets related to these aclivities were included in the balance
sheet of lgnitis on 1 June 2019 after the merger of ET. Assets are depreciated 1/20 a year The value of the balancing intangible assets as of
31 December 2019is EUR 9.2 million (EUR 11 5 million at the time of acquisition), Cperating profit from balancing activities was EUR 5.4 million
in 2018 (at ET) and EUR 2.9 million in 2019. The value of intangible assets related to derivatives trading at 31 January 2019 is EUR 6.6 miltion
{EUR 8.3 milhion at the time of acquisition).

Since 2019, speculative trading in derivatives 1s conducled only through the subsidiary Ignitis Polska Sp.z.0.0. Derivatives hedge trading is
continued by the Company to ensure the cost of electricity and gas for fixed price contracts in the retail market. The financial hedge result for
derivatives trading is aggregated in the financial statements with the retail result. Electricity and gas retail sales at fixed price earned EUR 4.6
million in 2019. Therefore the Company has not identified any evidence of impairment of intangible assets, and no impairment tests have been
performed.
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6 Intangible assets (continued)

The Company uses fully amortised intangible assets. the acquisition cost of which consists of the following:

Category of assets As at 31112/2019 As at 31/12/2018

Patents, licences. etc. £ 3
Computer scftware 27 27
Cost of amortised assets, total 32 30

7 Property, plant, and equipment
Changes in the Company's property, plant. and equipment during 2019 and 2018 are provided below

Solar power plants,
electric car
charging stations

Construction-in- Computer

progress hardware Other PP&E In total

Net book value at 1 January 2018 3 1 4
Depreciation - - {3) (1 {4)
MNet book value at 31 December 2018 - - - o

Cost - 19 5 24
Accumulated depreciation B - (19} (5} (24)
Net book value at 31 December 2018 . - - - S

Net book value at {1 January 2019 - - R

Acquisitions - 1.847 - 1 1,548
Reclassifications between classes 499 (499) - -
Acquired during the business combinations
undar common control (MNote 34) 156 423 B 41 820
Write-offs - (2) - - {2)
Depreciation charge for the year (14) - - (6} {20)
Net book value as at 31 December 2019 641 1,769 - 36 2,446
As at 31 December 2019
Acquesition cost 499 1.346 - 6 1,851
Acquisition cost of assets taken over at
business combination under common controb 180 423 - 53 638
{Note 34}
Accumulated depreciation {14) - - (11) (25)
Accumulated depreciation of assets taken
over at business combination under common 4) - (12) {16)
control {Note 34)
Net hook value as at 31 December 2019 641 1,769 - 36 2,446
As at 31 December 2019
Acquisition cost in tota 659 1769 4 59 2491
Accumulated depreciation in total (18 - 4) {23) {45)
Net book value as at 31 December 2019 641 1.769 - 36 2,445

The Company uses fully depreciated property. plant and equipment. the acquisition cost of which consists of the following:

As at 31/12/2019 As at 31711212018
Category of assets
Computer hardware, communication and other office equipment 4 18
Other PP&E 5 4
Cost of depreciated assets, total 9 22

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not have any commitments for the acquisition of property. plant and equipment
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8 Right-of-use assets

Dynamics of the Company's right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2019 provided below

Structures and

Buildings N — In totat
As at 31 December 2019

Opening net book value

Additions:

Whereof. recogmition as nght-of-use asset as at 01/01/2019 (Note 2.2) 290 - 290
Whereof: lease contracts signed from 02/01/2019 to 31/12/2019 512 - 512
Assels acquired in business combinations under common control 241 14 275

Whrite-offs and disposals (440) {32) (472}

Depreciation {118) (2) {120}

Met book value as at 31 December 2019 485 . 485
As at 31 December 2019
Acquisition cost 603 o 603
Accumulated depreciation (118) - {118)
Net hook value as at 31 December 2019 485 5 485

9 Subsidiaries

The Company's investments in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 included

iti I i Garryin hi
Acquisition cost paipent rying Ownership

amount interest (%)

Ignitis Latvija SIA 5,500 (2 500) 3,000 100

Ignitis Polska Sp za.0 2,338 - 2,339 100

Ignitis Eesti OU 35 - 35 100
Total T.874 {2,500} E,374

The impairment of investments in subsidiaries accounted for by the Company was determined by performing an impairment test, the description
of which is given in Note 5.

Performance of subsidiaries in 2019 was as follows.

Equity Total asscts Profit before tax
Ignitis Polska Sp. zo.0 1,738 Ja10 427
Ignitis Latvija SIA 535 11,598 (734)
Ignitis Eesti OU 42 78 (5)

In 2019, the Company did not recewve dividends from its subsidiaries

As al 31 December 2019. the Company had no significant contingent fiabilities associated with its subsidiaries

.
%
,
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10 Investment in associated entities and other investment

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s other financial assets comprised investments in other companies as follows:

Aeaisiism Gosk Impairment Carr},ung .Ownershlp
losses amount interast {%)
Verslo aptarnavimo centras. UAB 43 - 43 750
Ignitis grupés paslaugy centras, WAB* 60 - G0 084
In total 103 - 103

* Technologiiy ir inovacijy centras UAB untif the change of the name on 6 September 2019

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s olher financial assets comprised as follows

; - : ;
v G s mpairment Carrying pwnershm
losses amount interest (%)
Verslo aptarnavimo centras, UAB 22 - 22 375
Ignitis grupes paslaugy centras UAB 60 - &0 091
In total 82 - 82

On 16 December 2014, the Company signed the share purchase agreements regarding the participation in the share capital of Verslo
Aptarnavimo Centras UAB and Technelogijy ir Inovaciju Centras UAB. Pursuant to the signed shareholder agreements, the Company delegates
its representatives to the management bodies, i.e. the Boards, of Verslo Aptarnavimo Centras UAB and Technologijy ir Inovacijy Centras UAB

The Company accounted for the investments in these companies as investments in other companies. The shares of the latter companies were
acquired as a result of the concentration of certain competences of the companies belonging to Ignitis group in special service companies.

Information on dividends received from Verslo aptamavimo centras UAB and Grupés paslaugy centras UAB for the year 2019 and 2018 is
provided in Note 30.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had no significant contingent liabilities associated with Verslo aptarnavimo centras UAB ir Ignitis grupes
paslaugy centras UAB,

11 Loans granted

As at 311212019 As at 31/12/2018

Loans granted to subsidiares 9.200

Balance at 31 December 9,200 -

As at 31 December 2019. the Company had granted a credit of EUR 7.7 million to its subsidiary Ignitis Latvia SIA. The credit was granted to
finance the working capital and is repayable upon demand and the Company has no plans to demand its early repayment in 2020, and therefore
the loan granted was classified within ‘Non-current loan granted' as at 31 December 2019. The Company considers that there are ne indications
that the loans will not be repaid when needed The management has decided not to recognize impairment of lgans, based on improved
profitability and future cash flows modelling of lgnitis Latvija SIA. The loan is subject to a variable interest rale, where the raie at 31 December
2019 was 0.8% per annum

On 27 June 2017, UAB Energijos tiekimas (which was merged into the Company in year 2019 as disclosed in note 34) signed the credit line
agreement with its subsidiary Geton Energy Sp z o.0. for the amount of EUR 5,750 thousand. On 17 July 2017 the credil line imit was reduced
to EUR 3,600 thousand, As at 31 December 2019, the Company had granted a credit of EUR 1.500 thousand {o finance the working capital
The credit has to be repaid by 27 June 2021. Based on sold financal performance of Ignitis Polska Sp. z 0.0.. management has decided not to
recognize impairment of loans. The loan is subject to a variable interest rate, where the rate at 31 December 2019 was 0.63% per annum
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11 Loans granted (continued)

Movement of loans granted during 2019 and reconciliation with Cash Flow Satetement

Balance at 1 January

Lons granted 3700
Loans taken over in business combinations [Note 34] 12 498
Loans recovered (6.998)
Balance at 31 December 9,200

12 Inventories

As at 31/1272019 As at 31/12/2018

HNatural gas 40,797 19,835
Other inventories 2575 -
Carrying amount 43,372 19,836

Under the Lithuanian legislation the Company is required to store a quantity of natural gas in the underground storage facility as a reserve for
the smallest {ihe most sensitive) consumers of the Company. As at 31 Decernber 2019, the latter quantity comprised 394 GWh or EUR 6,806
thousand {31 December 2018: 421 GWh or EUR 10,409 thousand). The Company recorded no impairment in the available natural gas and
other reserves related to the implemeantation of energy saving solutions (disclosed as Other inventories in the above table), because the
comparison of their book value and market values showed no signs of impairment

13 Prepayments

As at 31/12/2019 As at 31/12/2018

Prepayments for natural gas 8,880 5,806
Prepayments for electricity due to over-declaration by customers 5,194 4433
Deposits on the electricily exchange® 15,973 -
Other 1.988 1039
In total 32,033 11,284

* Following the merger of Energijos Tiekimas UAB {Note 34), the Company continued trading in electricity on the NordP ool power exchange
through its wholesale and retail electricity sales activities. Under the regulations of the Power Exchange. the power purchase transactions need
to be secured by depositing the collaterals in the amount of the Iransactions, which the Company has accounted for under prepaymentis

Under the provisions of the natural gas supply agreement with Gazprom OAQ, in 2018 the Company did not use 46.9 million m3 of gas, out of
400 million m3 of the minimum natural gas quantity to be used. Under the provisions of the mentioned agreement, the Company can utilise the
unused quantity aver the course of 3 coming years upon the fulfilment of advance payment and natural gas consumption obligations laid down
in the agreement, The unused quantity of natural gas had no impact on the Company's financial position of 2018, however in 2019 the Company
made a prepayment of EUR 7.6 million for a part of natural gas not used in 2018. which were accounted for under natural gas prepayments
For more information on this transaction please refer to Notes 5 and 34
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14 Amounts receivable under contracts with customers

As at 31/12/2019 As at 31/12/2018

Amounts receivable from non-household customers for natural gas 11,586 30,676
Amounts receivable from household custormners for natural gas 3479 4,287
Amounts receivable from non-househald electricity consumers 14612
Amounts recevable from household customers for electricity 16748 16,086
Other 387 10,908
66.812 61,967
Expected credit losses {5.826) (4,953}
in total 60,986 67,014

When preparing financial statements for 2018, the Company accounted for the impact of the first-time adoption of IFRS 9 starling from 1 January
2018 using the modified retrospective approach. The Company applied IFRS 9. Financial Instruments for the first tme during the financial year
ended 31 December 2018 and the standard did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. The Company assessed
the effect of the adoption of the standard, which was equal to EUR 117 thousand and was recognised in retained earnings (loss) in the financial
statements for 2018. During the reporting year, trade receivables were assessed on a collective basis. The adoption of IFRS 9 has no significant
impact on the method of assessment of the balances of trade receivables existing until the enactment of the standard.

The standard period of settiement of amounts receivable under contracts with clients is 15 to 30 days

Impairment of amounts receivable - expected credit losses are recognised on a collective basis. The Company applies the loss ralio matrix to
calculate these amounts, The loss ratio matrix is based on historical data on the settlement for trade receivables during the period of validity of
trade receivables and is adjusted with respect to future forecasts. The Joss ratios are updated during the preparation of the annual financial
statements wilh respect lo the impact of operational prospects where these prospects are indicative of any exacerbation of economic conditions
during upcoming years.

After 1 June 2019 the management of the Company decided to apply a uniform matrix of loss coefficients to non-household customers of natural
gas and electricity. The calculation methadology used by Energijos Tiekimas UAB until then was changed, i.e. receivables impairment is
calculated on the basis of the internal ratings assigned to the borrower.

The valuation is based on external and internal information about the debtor, which may be material to determine the debtor’s ability to setile
with the Company. External sources of information include financial status, court involvement. debt to other entities, employee liends, arrests,
and other information that is used as the basis for establishing a bankruptcy rating (bankruptcy probability model) or risk class. This external
information is obtained through service agreements with third parties (Credit Agencies). Internal information is the profile of the debtor's actual
settlement with the Company. which Is the basis for the seltlement rating. Based on the ratio of bankruptcy ratings or risk classes to settlement
ratings. the borrower is assigned internal rating on a scale from A to E, where A is the lowest risk and E is the highesl risk grade. In doing so. a
loss rate is based on the internal ratings assigned to the borrowers.

Receivables fram customers in the lowest risk class having an internal rating of A have zero ECL loss rate. Receivables from the customers
with the second. third, fourth and fifth risk classes which have internal ratings of B, C. D and E. respectively, are subject lo discount rates of
1.1%,. 4.5%. 17% and 100% respectively.

In the Company’s opinion, the effect of changing the accounting estimate for expected credit losses for non-household customers is insignificant
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14 Amounts receivable under contracts with customers (continued)

In 2019, the Company conlinued to apply an overall assessment in 2019 to the following loss malrix

Househeld custemers Hcousehold custemers

{natural gas) {Electricity)
Not past due 1.00% 0.60%
Past due up to 1 month 1.80% 3.60%
Past due from 1 to 2 months 4.50% 8,70%
Past due from 2 to 3 months 8 90% 19.60%
Past due from 3 to 4 months 14 10% 29 30%
Past due fram 4 1o 5 months 19 90% 37 20%
Past due from 5 to & months 26 10% 44 50%
Past due from 6 to 7 menths 32 30% 50 80%
Past due from 7 to & months 38.40% 56.70%
Past due from 8 to 8 months 44.30% 62.20%
Past due from 9 to 10 months 50.50% 66.40%
Past due from 10 to 11 months 55.90% 70.20%
Past due frem 11 to 12 months 61.30% 73.70%
Past due over 1 year 78.30% 85.90%

The following loss ratio matrix was applied by the Company to all the customers of electricity and gas as at 31 December 2018:

Loss ratios
Household customers Househeld customers Nan-household
{natural gas} {Electricity) customers {natural gas)

Not past due 1 60%

Past due up to 1 month 2.60% 3.00% 2.94%
Past due from 1 10 2 months 6.30% 6.90% 16.00%
Past due from 2 to 3 months 12.30% 13.80% 31.05%
Past due from 3 to 4 months 19.40% 10.60% 45.50%
Past due from 4 fo 5 months 27 10% 23.80% 52.10%
Past due from 5 to 6 months 36.20% 27 .90% 61.10%
Past due from 6 10 7 months 43 30% 31.30% 67.05%
Past due from 7 to B months 51 30% 34.80% 76.10%
Past due from & o 9 maonths 59 20% 37.50% 83.80%
Past due from § to 10 months 67 50% 40.00% 90.90%
Past due from 10 to 11 months 74 50% 42.20% 92 00%
Past due fram 11 t¢ 12 months 81.60% 44.30% 98 25%
Past due over 1 year 100.00% £9.00% 99 81%

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's trade receivables under contracts with household customers were assessed using the loss ratio malrix:

Carrying amount Impaiment losses
before credit losses

Not past due 12,763 {B886)
Past due up to 1 month 1721 {56)
Past due from 1 to 2 months 531 {43)
Past due from 2 to 3 months 253 (44}
Past due from 3 to 4 months 121 (31}
Past due from 4 to 5 months 131 (43}
Past due frorn 5 to & months 100 (41)
Past due from 6 to 7 months g8 (46)
Past due from 7 to & months o (49)
Past due from § to 9 months 105 (81)
Past due from @ to 10 months 67 (42)
Past due from 10 to 11 months a5 (65)
Past due from 11 1o 12 months 107 (73
Past due over 1 year 4,044 {3,530)
Total receivables under contracts with customers 20,227 (4.210)
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14 Amounts receivable under contracts with customers (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's trade receivables under contracts with household and non-household {natural gas) customers were
assessed using the loss ralio matrix

Carrying amount impaiment losses
hefore credit losses

Not past due 48,095 (131}
Past due up to 1 month 3 506 {115}
Past due from 1 to 2 months 1149 {128)
Past due from 2 to 3 months 260 {38)
Past due from 3 to 4 months 171 {35)
Past due from 4 to 5 months 106 (27)
Past due from 5 to & months 137 (413
Past due from 6 to 7 months 247 (131)
Past due from 7 to & months 190 {111}
Past due from 8 to 9 months 107 {51)
Past due from 9 to 10 months 86 {42)
Past due from 10 to 11 months 41 {26)
Past due from 11 to 12 months 67 (38)
Past due over 1 year 4,966 (4,039}
Total receivables under contracts with customers 57,628 {4,953}

Trade receivables of the Company under contracts with non-household customers on 31 December 2019 shall be assessed by means of an
internal rating system:

Carrying amount Impairment losses
befere credit loss

Internal Ratings

A 35,341 -
B 4,258 (47)
(&5 4,892 (220)
o] 898 (153)
E 1186 (1.196)
Total receivables from contracts with non-household customers 46,585 {1.816)

Dynamics of expected credit losses of receivables under contracts with customers in 2019 and 2018

At beginning of tha reporting period 4,953 2,083
Change in mpairment in retained earmings due to first-ime adoption of IFRS 9 17
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period 4,953 2,200
Increase in impairment recognsed during the year 694 663
Impairment of public supply activities taken over from ESO 179 2607
Reversal of impairment allowance unutilised S {517)
At the end of the reporting period 5826 4,963

Changes in the impairment provision for amounls receivable under coniracts with customers for the year 2019 recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Carrying amount of credit-impaired receivables under contracts with customers as at 31 December 2019 was EUR 5826 thousand (as at 31
December 2018 - EUR 4.953 thousand}.
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15 Derivatives

The Company's balances of derivatives as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows

As at 31/12/2019 As at 31/12/2018

Derivative assets
Gas transactions
Electricity transactions

Total derivatives

Derivative liabilities
(3as transactions
Electricity transaclions

Total derivative liabilities

16 Other receivables

5.036 412
233

5,265 a1z

1,120 V7

1.408 R

2,528 17

As at 31/12/2019 As at 31/12/2018

Other current amounts receivable
Finance lease receivables
Other receivables

Total other current amounts receivable

Other non-current amounts receivable

Finance lease receivables

Total other non-current amounts receivable

Balance at 31 December

520
6311 198
5,831 198
3043 ;
3,043
9874 T 196

One of the reasons for the increase in other current receivables is the electricity balancing service taken over from Energijos Tiekimas UAB,
where other recevables include amounts receivable in future periods from companies purchasing these services. The increase in other
receivables was also determined by the activihes of energy saving solutions laken over from Energijos Tiekimas UAB. By fulfilling its contractual
abligations, the Company provides the buyers with the right to acquire equipment under financial lease contracts. when at the end of the contract
and after the buyer has paid the full amount specified in the contract within this time the title of the installed equipment is transferred to the

buyer

Payment deadlines under financial leasing contracls

As at 31/12/2019 As at 31/12/2018

Through 2020 595 -
Dunng the years 2021-2024 1.91% -
During 2025 and beyond 1.388 -
Total payments 3,902 -
Future interest
Through 2020 (75) -
During the years 2021-2024 (192} -
During 2025 and bayond {72) -
Total (338)
Current value of financial leasing payments 3863
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17 Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31/12/2019 As at 31/12/2018

Cash at bank 22,267 11,438
Cash n transit 1.142
Total other current amounts receivable 23,409 11,438

The Company holds its cash only in the highest rated credit institutions. The management has not identified any indications of impairment for
cash and has not recognized them in the stalement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had pledged to the banks funds in the amount of EUR 6 thousand as a collateral under the proposal
and performance guarantees issued by the banks (no funds were pledged as of 31 December 2018)

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had an overdraft agreement with the bank for the limit of EUR 10 thousand. As at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018, no amount was withdrawn by the Company.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had a guarantee limit agreement with OP Corporate Bank plc for the amount of EUR 55 million. As at
31 December 2019. the limit of the guarantees was utilised in the amount of EUR 42 755 thousand {as at 31 December 2018. the withdrawn
balance of the limit amounted to EUR 1.924 thousand).

Foltowing the merger of Energijos Tiekimas UAB and Litgas UAB {Note 34). the Company took over financing services {(guarantee limit)
agreements with AB SEB bankas in the amount of EUR 15,000 thousand and EUR 84,700 thousand. On 31 December 2019, the amount of the
used guarantee limit of SEB bankas AB amounted to EUR 10,963 thousand and EUR 44,100 thousand respectively

Following the merger of Energijos Tiekimas with the Company. Luminor Bank AS also took over the guarantee limit agreement of EUR 450
thousand and EUR 735 thousand long term credit agreement. On 31 December 2019. Luminor Bank AS used a guaraniee limit of EUR 77
thousand.

In order to balance its working capital, the Company has concluded cash-pool agreements with the companies of the Ignitis Group

18 Share capital

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s share capital amounted to EUR 40.140,000 and was divided into 138.413,794 ordinary registered
shares with par value of EUR 0.29 each. As at 31 December 2018, lhe Company's share capital was divided into 28,862,070 ordinary registered
shares with par value of EUR 0.29 each. The merger of Litgas UAB in January 1 2019 increased the authorized capital of 45,000,000 ordinary
registered shares with the nominal value of EUR 0 29 each. for a total of EUR 13.050.000 thousand. Following the merger of UAB Energijos
Tiekimas on 1 June 2019. the authorized capitat was increased by 18 720 000 ordinary registered shares with the par value of EUR 1 each.
totalling EUR 18 720 000. All the shares are fully paid

The Company did not pay dividends in 2019 (4.6 million dividends were paid in 2018). Dividends paid by the Company are nol subject to
corporation tax

19 Reserves

The legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under the Lithuanian legislation. Companies in Lithuania are required to transfer 5% of net profit from
distributable profit until the total reserve reaches 10% of the share capital The legal reserve shall not be used for payment of dividends and is
farmed to cover future losses only. The legal reserve was not fully formed on 31 December 2019 and 2018 and transfers to the legal reserve
will be made by the decision of the shareholders at the next ordinary shareholders meeting

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s legal reserve amounted to EUR 468 thousand (31 December 2018: EUR 468 thousand)
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20 Loans received

Aiming to reduce costs incurred for the funding of its working capital, on 18 May 2016 the Company signed the Ignitis Group UAB Group account
{cashpool) agreement of an unlimited validity. under which the Company may obtain current loans from olher companies of the Group. As at 31
December 2019, the borrowing limit set until 1 March 2020 was EUR 130 000 thousand. Intragroup borrowing transactions have to be concluded
in accordance with market terms and with interest rates. which would be set in the market. The market interest rate 15 established for the period
of one calendar year. therefore, the carrying amount of barrowings approximates their fair value within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy As al
31 December 2019, the Company's borrowings amounted to EUR 79.272 thousand. No pledges or other collaterals as securily of loan
repayment were made

To finance the acquisition of public supply activities from Energijos Skirstymo Operatorius AB (Nole 34} the company entered into an agreement
with Ignitis Group UAB for the amount of EUR 27 000 thousand, with repayment term of 29 March 2024, The annual interest rate is calculated
using the formula EURIBOR 3M + 2.5%

After the reorganisation. the Company look over the agreement entered by Energijos Tiekimas UAB wilh Ignitis Group UAB on 5 December
2018 on the (proportional} transfer of the obligations ansing from the Green Bonds issue, which is intended to finance the projects for investments
in energy consumption reduction, energy consumption reduction. energy consumption efficiency and renewable energy resources (photovollaic
solar power plants). The credit amount is EUR 3,500 thousand. the repayment deadline is 10 July 2028, and annual interest rate is 2.41%, which
is calculated on the outstanding balance of the loan.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s current borrowings amounted to EUR 79,577 thousand, and non-current borrowings amounted to
EUR 30,737 thousand The Company’s borrowings were received from retated parties (Note 33)

The Company does not have any foreign currency loans
The weighted average interest rates on the Company's borrowings payable are 1.28% (2018 ~ 0.45%).

Non-current barrowings by maturity:!

As at 31/12/2019 As at 31/12/2018

Between 1 and 2 years 237 -
Between 2 and 5 years 27.000 -
After 5 years 3,500 -
In total 10,737 -
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21 Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities and their dynamics

As at 31112/2019 As at 31112/2018

Opening book value

Recognition of lease habiities under IFRS 16 290
Additions of lzase contracts 512
Taken over in a business combination under common contro! [Note 34) 276
Termination of iease (write-off of debt and accrued interest) {442)
Interest charges 7
Lease payments {principal portion and interest) (142)
Reclassified to other payables {15)
Carrying amount at 31 December 486
Non-current lease habilities 326
Current lease liabilities 160

The total amount of payments under lease and finance leases in 2019 amounted to EUR 142 thousand (in 2018: EUR 7 thousand) Payments
related io leases of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets are ctassified as cash flows from operating activities and in 2019 amounted
to EUR 72 thousand.

The Company's future payments under leases were as follows:

As at 31/12/2019 As at 31/12/2018

Minimum payments
Within one year 45T
Two to five years amn

More than five years

In total 438

Future finance costs
Within one year (7
Two to five years (5}

More than five years

In total {12y

Carrying amount A86
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22 Provisions

The Company classifies provisions into long-term and short-term. in 2019 and 2018 the amounts of provisions are disclosed below:

Long-term 3 4
Short-term 21
Balance at 31 December 114 4

Dynamics of provisions during 2019 and 2018 were as foliows

Balance at 1 January 4 4
Provision for warranty obligations 106
Provision for pensiens and simdar liablties 4
Balance at 31 December 114 4

Provisions for employee benefits include a slatutory retirement benefit payable to the Company’s employees. The balance of provisions at the
reparting dale is reviewed with reference to actuarial calculations to ensure that estimation of retirement benefil labilities is as much accurate
as possible. The liabilities are recognised at discounted value at a markel interest rate of 3 2%

23 Trade payables

The Campany's trade payables

To electricity systern operators 26.934 25,198
To electnicity suppl ers 4,863 12,123
To natural gas system operators 4.189 9.406
To natural gas suppiiers 3428 62
For acquisition of a electrizity public supply business (Note 34) . 27 441
Otinr 641 1.071
In total 40,055 75.301

Terms and conditions applicable to current trade payables:

. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within the term of 10 to 45 days.
. Terms and conditions applicable to amounts payable 10 related parties are described in Note 33.

The carrying amount of amounts payable approximates heir fair value within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
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24 Contract liabilities

The Company's contract habilities as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 consisted of

Under other contracts 15
Customer contracts {IFRS 15} 20.082 18,517
In total 20.097 18,517

In September 2019. the Company launched an onine platform for remole solar parks to bring together solar park developers with potential
buyers. In this case the Company acts as an intermediary and represents developers {under the contracts signed) them in concluding contracts
with buyers, manages billing process and collects payments from buyers on their behalf which are transferred to the developers’ current
accounts withint the contractual deadlines. As at December 31, 2019, the Company collected EUR 15 thousand of payments from buyers on
behalf developers and accounted for under other contract liabilites

Dynamics of the Company's contract liabilities during 2019 and 2018 were as follows

2019 2018
Opening book value 13,517 T.5679
Recognised as income (18.517) (7.579)
Acquired during business combinations 273 -
Customer payments received 19.824 18,517
In totat 20,007 18,817
25 Other current amounts payable and liabilities
Other current amounts payable and liabilities of the Company consisted of:

2019 2018

Accrued costs and deferred income for electricity and gas and related services 6,485
VAT payable to the budget 10,173 2641
Other payables 1.644 B10
In total 18,313 3,251

Accrued expenses and deferred income for electricity and gas supply. and related services increased due to the electricity trading and balancing
services taken over from Energijos Tiekimas UAB (Note 34) and the late receipt of suppliers’ inveoices for the electricity and gas purchased

The growth in the amount of tax payable to the budget was predetermined by the expansion of the Company's operations and increase in sales
at the end of 2019,
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26 Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue recognised from contracts with customers:

Non-household Household

customers customers

Sales revenue of nalural gas

155 336 59,517 214,853

Revenue from public supply of electricity - 137,190 137 190
Retail trade in electricity 50,568 - 50.568
LNGT revenue 29.371 5 29.371
Revenue from project activities 612 764 1.376
Total for 2019 235,887 197,471 433,358

Non-household Household

customers custamers

Sales revenue of natural gas

135631 51524 187157

Revenue from public supply of eleciricity - 21.254 21254

Revenue from project activties - 343 343
Total for 2018 *{restated) 136,633 73121 T 208,754

All revenue from agreements concluded with customers is calculated with regard o the price of the transaction as defined in the agreement
The Company usually receives payments within 15-30 days after the delivery of goods or services. Inrare cases. the terms of delayed payment
might be agreed upon, however, any delay of payments cannot exceed 12 months, and therefore. the transaction price is not adjusted in view
of the financing impact on revenue recognition. Revenue for the above streams is recognized over time.

The Company's performance obligations are summarized below

By signing an agreement with a customer to sell electricity. the Company assumes performance obligation to sell electricity to the customer at
the price specified in Ihe agreement or announced publically in company's website (for households). This performance obligation is satisfied
over a period of time and the customer receives benefits as and when required. Customers are billed for their electricity use on a monthily basis
based on their declared electricity consumgption, Bills are due within 15 to 30 days. Customers do not have the possibility to recover money paid
for goods previously provided 1o them, In some cases, the Company may require a deposit to be made prior to the provision of electricity by
reference to the customer's credit rating.

By signing an agreement with a customer to sell natural gas. the Company assumes perfarmance obligation 1o sell natural gas to the customer
at the price specified in the agreement or announced publically in company’s website {for households). This performance cbligation is satisfied
over a period of time and the customer receives benefits as and when required. Customers are billed for their natural gas use on a monthly
basis based on their declared natural gas consumption. Bills are due within 15 to 30 days. Customers do not have the possibility to recover
money paid for goods previcusly prowided to them.

Transaction price affocation to remaining performance obligations

All the Company's performance obligations entitle the Company to receive from the customer such amournt that corresponds direclly with the
value of the Company's performance completed to date, therefore, the Company applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15
and elects not to disclose the allocation of transaction price to the remaining operating liabilities
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27 Other income

Other revenue for 2019 and 2018 included

Result of derivatives (Note 28} 3,948 -
Cther income 54 -
Other income, total 4,002

Following the expansion of the Company’s operations and the provision of new services to its customers. they were reclassified to other
income in 2019. It consisted of a solar power plant instatlation service
28 Result of derivatives trading

During 2019 the result of realized and unrealized derivatives is presenled in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

Otherincome

Gain on derivatives 3653

Cost of sales

Loss on derivatives {6 287) BGZ
Result of realised derivatives T (2,634 Bb2
QOther income

Income from unrealised decnvatives 295

Cost of sales

Cost of unrealised derivatives (2.583) 185
Result of unrealised derivatives {2,?5-3_! 185
Total accounted for in other income 3,948 -
Total accounted for in cost of sales (8,870} 1,047
Total derivative result (4,922) 1,047

29 Cost of sales

Cost of sates for 2019 and 2018 included

2018 *(restated}

Purchase of electricity for supply purposes 199,005 38,267
Cost of natural gas acquesstion 198,669 159,718
Expenses of natural gas transmession services 16,055 13,780
Expenses of natural gas storage 2Ns 398
In total 416,044 212,153
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30 Finance income

The Company's finance income for 2018 and 2018 included the following

Interest income 476 206
Diwdends received 12 "
in total 438 Kok

The Company received dividends from;

2019 2018
UAB Verslo aptarnavimo centras o 10
UAB Ignitis grupés paslaugy centras 3
In total 12 11

31 Finance expenses

The Company's finance expenses for 2019 and 2018 included the following

Interest expense on loans payable 1337 143
Guarantee and surety fees 59
Interest and discount expense on lease liabilities 5
Cther financial costs 28
In total 1438 143
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32 Income tax
The Company’s components of tax expense {income)} on 31 December were as follows

As at 31/12/2019 Ao 2l FHIARE

(restated)”
Current year income tax (expenses) (373) {28)
Transfer of tax losses {o Ignits Group companies for consideration 1.554 780
Deferred income tax gain/(expenses} (1,728} 4.179
Income tax gain/{expenses} accounted forin the statement of Profit orloss and other comprehensive (547} 4,941

income
*Amounts presented do not maltch the Financial Statements of 2018 and related adjustments are disclosed in Note 4

Deferred income tax assets and liabilfies are calculated using the income tax rate of 15%

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate applicable 1o profit of the
Company as follows

As at 31122018 As at 3171212018

{restated)’
Profit {loss) before tax {4,788) {10.862)
Income tax calculated at a rate of 15% 718 1.629
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes - permanent differences (402) (9)
Non-taxable iIncome for income tax purposes 24 38
Utilised tax loss 729 -
Disposed tax losses (1.554) (790)
Income tax of the permanent establishment in Latwa {82) (31)
Impact of change in net realisable value - 4,104
Income fax benefit (expenses) {547) 4,941

*Amounts presented do not match the Financial Statements of 2018 and related adjustments are disclosed in Note 4

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes refate to the same fiscal authority. Dynamics of deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the reporting period were as follows:

Taken over
during the
Recognised in Tax loss business
profit or loss carryforward combhination
under common
sontrol {Note 34)

As at  Recognise Taxloss As at 31 December

As at 31
December
2019

34/12i201 | in profit orarryforwar 2018
7 loss d (restated)”

Provisions for doubtiul debts 12 429 - 741 108 - 50 899
Accruals for employee benefils ;

termination benefits &0 i . ge 32 ° 8 88
Vacation reserve k| {2) - ] - - - 1
Accrued expenses - - - 745 5 5 745
Impact of 16 IFRS application - - - - 4 & 3 4
Tax loss carry-forward 4,638 1,454 (887) 5,205 (72%) {1.554) 1.187 4100
LT T LT 4573 1.897 (887) 5983 162 {1,554) 1,256 5,846
before valuation allowance

Rewversal of impairment

(impatrment} of net realisable (3.169) 3,169 -

value

Deferred income tax asset, net __ 1,804 5,066 mﬂ 5983 162 (1,554) 1,265 5,846
Differences in depreciation rates - - - (186 - {152) (318)
Unrealized value of derivatives - - - 19) . (2.113) {2.132)
Deferred income tax

(iabilities) - - {185} - {2,265) (2,450)
Deferred income tax, net 1,804 5,066 (887) 5,983 (23) _[1,564) {1,010 3,396

*Amounts presented do not match the Financial Statements of 2018 and related adjustments are disclosed in Note 4

In 2019, the Company transferred EUR 1,554 thousand of tax losses and derecognised EUR 233 thousand deferred tax assets in the amount
of EUR 1.536 thousand. The Company atcounted for the derecognised deferred tax assets and the consideration received in the Statement of
Profit or loss and comprehensive income undér “Income tax income {loss)’
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33 Related party transactions

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the parent company was lgniis Group UAB. The disclosures comprise fransactions and balances of these
transactions with the parent company, its subsidiaries (directly and indirectly controlled). entities controlled by or under significant influence of
the state (transactions with these enlities are disclosed only if they are material). and management,

In 2019. the Company did not have any significant transactions with the Republic of Lithuania represented by the Minislry of Finance of the
Republic of Lithuania or entities controlled by the Republic of Lithuania. Other related parties of the Company are £EPS0-G UAB Group
companies controlled by the Republic of Lithuania

The Company's transactions with related paries conducted during the period from January to December 2019 and balances arising on these
transactions as at 31 December 2019 are presented below

Leans granted Accounts

Related parties i Loans received Accounts Payable Purchases Sales
Receivable
Subsidiaries of the Company 9,200 209 1 871 825
Associates of the Company - 567 511 963 9772
Group companies of Ignitis - 4717 18517 28.550 58 230 59,245
Group UAB
Parent company lgnitis 90755 51 1.343
Group UAB
EPSO G UAB Group
companies controlled by the
state 5,036 . 4.205 44,714 58,442
In total 9,200 10,629 109,783 33,770 114,930 118,312

The Company purchases electricity, fransmission and distribution of electricity and gas, accounting. procurement. customer service, transport
leasing and other services from related parties

information on dividends received from/paid to related parties is provided in Note 30.
Terms of transactions with related parties

The paymenl terms set range from 30 to 90 days. Closing debt balances are not secured by pledges. they do not yield interest, and settlements
accur in cash. There were no guarantees given or received in respect of the related party payables and receivables For the year ended 31
December 2019, the Company did not recognise a bad debt allowance for expected credil losses for receivables from related parties due to low
credit risk.

Rel rly guarantees

The parent company has signed a surety agreement to secure the guarantee issued by AB Swedbank
Doubtful receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had no doubtful receivable from related parties

The Company's transactions with related parties conducted during the peried from January to December 2018 and balances arising on these
transactions as at 31 December 2018 are presented below

Related parties Accounts Receivable Leoans received Accounts Payable Purchases Sales
Assaciates of the Company 7 a8 3.960 -
Group companies of lgnitis 1.574 2774 76 142 161 403 28,834

Group UAB
Parent company Ignitis - 14 130 209
Group UAB
State-controlled EPSO G
UAB Group companies 1,388 3611 34,022 7.201
In total 2,977 2,778 94,774 199,594 34,035
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33 Related party transactions (continued)

Compensation to key management personnel:

As at 31 December As at 31/12/2018
2019
Wages and salaries and other benefils to management 583 176
Whereof termination benefits and benefits to Board Members ;m
Number of key management personnel 5 3

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer, senior management and members of the Board are considered to be management.

34 Business combinations
Acquisition of electricily public supply business in year 2018

As a part of implementation of the provisions of the European Union's Third Energy Package. under the Business Share Purchase and Sale
Agreement of 21 September 2018, starting from 1 October 2018 Energjjos Skirstymo Operatorius AB transferred to the Company the business
part of public electricity supply service. An independent evaluation of the public supply business was carried out to determine the acquisition
price

The Company applied the acqusition method for accounting for this business combination in accordance with IFRS 3. Under the acquisition
method. the acquisition cost is the total fair value. which Is the fair value at the date of exchange of assets. liabilities and equily instruments
issued by the Company in exchange for control of the business

The purchase price of the business unit was paid in cash (EUR 27.441 thousand) in accordance with the contract by 29 March 2019

In the course of a business combination. the Company took over assets —receivables for electnicity from customers and liabiities - payables to
suppliers and prepayments related to the acquired porfion of operations, which it recognized in its financial statements (Note 4}

In this business combination the Company has also identified an intangible assets that was acquired. Intangible assets were carried in the
statement of financial pesition of the Company at acquisition cost. which was the fair value of it at the time of acquisiton. The fair value of
intangible assets arising from a business combination was determined on the basis of management valuation performed in year 2019 as
disclosed in Note 5.

By 31 December 2018 management has not yet completed the initial assessment of accounting for the business combination because the
period provided in paragraph 45 of IFRS 3 for the combination has not yet expired and valuation of intangible asset acquired took more hme
than initially expected.

During 2019 The Company has assessed the progress of ihe planned state deregulation of the supply of electricity to household customers and
conducted the necessary analysis and completed the initial recognition of the acquired intangible asset by identifying and allecating it and setting
amortization terms for it. As a result, at the end of the initial recognition accounting. the Company has reviewed comparative information
presented in its financial stalements and made a depreciation adjustment, as presented in Note 4. Namely. one intangible asset comprising of
two components of different useful life has been identified.

1} Client contracts and relationships {exceeds profit from client contracts) valued at EUR 21,045,000, amortization rate is set to 5 years.
Value of this assel is equal 1o the accumulated difference between regulated electricity acquisition price as part of electricity tariff and
actual price paid in electricilty spot markets, calculated at the moment of business acquisition. Deprecialion period represents
management judgement as to the period over which this difference can reasonably be collected through future etectricity tariff
adjustments.

2) Client contracts and relationships, valued at EUR 3,140.000. amaortization rate 1s set to 15 years. Valuation of the asset has been
performed using DCF and MEEM methods. Valuation is based on the assumption that deregulation of public supply staris in 2021
Useful life of the asset is based on the besl management judgement DCF maodelling suppors management view, as terminal cash
flow beyond year 15 is negligibie.
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34 Business combinations {continued)

Under the provisions of the agreement for the transfer of public supply aclivities concluded with Ignitis UAB of 21 September 2018, the Company
is obliged to cempensale Ignitis UAB a half of the difference generated until 21 September 2018 between the revenue delermined by the National
Energy Regulatory Council (hereinafter 'NERC') and the actual {regulated} revenue. if NERC is nol going to compensate this difference to Ignitis
UAB when setting electricity tariff for the period from 2019 to 2021. Difference occurred between the purchase price of electricity determined by
NERC and the actual price paid.

Al the conclusion of the agreement for the transfer of public supply activlies, the difference of EUR 23,927 thousand was identified between the
revenue determined by the NERC and the actual (regulated} revenue earned. Part of the aforementioned difference of EUR 2,500 thousand
was repaid to UAB Ignitis when delermining the prices for the public supply service for the year 2020. Management expects that the remainder
of the difference will be repaid when determining the price caps for lgnitis UAB for the year 2021. The exact repayment date and amount will
become clear in October 2020, when the NERC approves the price cap for the public electricity supply service of Ignitis UAB for the year 2021.

Based on the management estimates, the risk thai part of the residual difference will not be compensated to the public supplier is minimal,
because even if part of the difference will not be compensated to Ignitis UAB through the price of the regulated service set for the year of 2021,
Ignitis UAE will recover all the amounts received under the agreement for the transfer of public supply activities of 21 September 2018 according
to the revenue compensation mechanism established during the stages of the electricity market liberalization under Article 22 clause 9 of the
draft Law on Electricity of the Republic of Lithuania.

Businass combinations under common control in year 2018

In 2019, Ignitis Group UAB carried out two reorganizations. thus imptementing the new stralegy and gradually consolidating electricity and
natural gas trading and supply activities: on 1 January 2019 DAB LITGAS was merged with UAB Ignitis; 1 June 2018 UAB Energijos Tiekimas
{ET) was also merged.

Although the Ignitis Group applies the acquisition method to business combinations in accordance with IFRS 3, the management of the
Company. having considered all circumstances related to both reorganisations. namely:

1. IFRS 2(c) specifies that the requirements of the standard are not applicable o merges of jointly controlled entities or business entities
Paragraph B1 of the Standard clarifies that the Standard does not apply to combination of entities or businesses that are jointly controlled. A
jointly controlled entity or business combination is a business combination in which all the combining entities or business units are controlled by
the same party or parties before and after the business combination and that control is not temporary. Prior to the merger, the major and sole
shareholder of LITGAS and ET was Ignitis Group, therefore the acquisition of these entities is considered the "Combination of jointly controlled
entities or businesses” as defined in IFRS 3 paragraph B1

2. No cash payment was made in lhe fransaction and there was no borrowing from third parties for the purpose of the merger.

(a) After the first merger, the share capital of the UAB Ignitis increased by an amount equal to the share capital of LITGAS, i.e. EUR
13,050,000 {thirteen million and fifty thousand euro) to EUR 21,420,000,30 (twenty-one million and four hundred and twenty thousand euro and
thirty cents). During the reorganization there was no difference in the price of the shares exchanged and no payment was made to the
shareholder as the shares were exchanged at par. The shareholder structure has not changed since the reorganization, the 100 percent siake
in the reprganized company remains under the control of UAB Ignitis Group.

(b) After the second merger, the share capital of UAB Ignitis increased by an amount equal to the share capital of ET, i.e. EUR 18,720.000
(gighteen million seven hundred and twenty thousand eurc) to EUR 40.140.000.266 (forty mithon one hundred and forty thousang euro, twenty-
six cents), During the reorganization there was a difference of 0.04 EUR exchangeable shares, which, in line with the legistation of Republic of
Lithuania, was paid to the UAB Ignilis group as the shareholder of the company that will be closed after the reorganization, The shareholder
structure has not changed since the reorganization, the 100 percent stake in the reorganized company remains under the conirol of UAS Ignitis
Group.

{c) In both cases, valuation of real values of shares exchanged has been performed based on financial statements as of 31 December
2018, i.e. not at fair value. Significant difference in potential fair value of shares exchanged further supports management decision not to apply
acquisition method.

{(d) from the perspective of UAB Ignitis Group and the Company, the merger has no commercial basis as it does not create new assets, the
shareholder structure after reorganization {both in case of UAB LITGAS and UAB Energijos Tiekimas) remains unchanged. 100% of shares in
companies remains under UAB Ignitis Group's control.

Based on the above considerations, the Company has decided to apply the IFRS 3 exception foreseen in paragraph 2c to accounting for
business combinations of: UAB LITGAS and the Company (recrganization on 1 January 2019} and the Company and UAB Energijos Tiekimas
{reorganization on 1 June 2019) and apply the method of pociing of interest according which assets and liabilities of combined business are
added to the Company based on their accounting values as at the date of combination. Any difference between share capital given to the
shareholder for the businesses acquired and the nel assets acquired under business combination is recorded as adjustment to retain earnings
in the statement of changes in equity.

14 Ignltls The Company's Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 .



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AH amounis are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

34 Business combinations (continued)

Following the reargamisation of LITGAS UAB. the Company took over the aclivities of its designated LNG supplier, which includes the supply of
liguefied natural gas to the LNG terminal. The table below shows assets and liabilities of the combined entity as al 1 January 2019.

Non-current assets

Investments in associates and other investments 22
Deferred tax assets 628
Total non-current assets 650

Current assets

Inventones 17,564
Prepayments 81
Prepaid income tax 778
Accounts receivable under contracts with customers 18917
Loans and interest receivable 6998
Other receivables 4
Cash and cash equivalents 287
TFotal current assets 44,629
Total assets 45,279
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade payables 30,045
Other current amounts payable and liabilives 4033
Total liabilities 34,078
Identifiable net assets on combination 11,201
Increase in issued capital due to reorganisation 13,050
Difference between the identifiable net assets merged and increase in issued capital, accounted for within
retained earnings (1,849)

Changes in equity items on combination

Issued capital 13.050
Difference between the new share issue and net assets acquired recorded in Retained earnings (1,849)
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34 Business combinations (continued)

After the reorganisation of Energijos Tiekimas UAB by way of merger. the Company took over the following activities: Electricity supply to
commercial customers. balancing of electricity consumption, 1ssue of guarantee certificates of origin of energy, wholesale trade in electricity
futures. implementation of projects for the designing and construgtion of solar power plants. implementation of energy efficiency solutions. and
development of electric car charging stations. The table below presents assets and liabilities of the merged company as at 1 June 2019,

Energijos Tiekimas UAB

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 16,749
Property plant and equipmeint 620
Right-of-use assels 276
Investments into subsidiarnies 7.874
Other receivables 1,744
Deferred tax assets 141
Total non-current agsets 27,404

Current assels

Inventories 389
Prepaid income tax 487
Accounts receivable under contracts with customers 6.377
Loans and interest recevable 5.500
Derivatives 175
Other receivables 13.958
Cash and cash equivalents 5,037
Total current agsets 31,923
Total assets 59,327
Liabilities
Long-term loans 3.838
Provisions 34
Lease liabitives 200
Deferred incorne tax liabdity 1,621
Tota! non-current liabilities 5,693

Current liabilities

Short-term tocans 23.324
Lease liabilihes 76
Trade payables 2041
Contract abililies 273
Income tax payatie 359
Provisions 7
Derivatives 117
Other current amounts payable and liabilities 3,598
Total current liabilities 29,795
Total liabilities 35,488
Identifiable net assets on combination 23,839
Increase in issued capital due to reorganisation 18,720
Difference between the identifiable net assets merged and increase in issued capital, accounted for within

retained earnings 6,119

Changes in equity items on combination

Issued capital 18,720
Difference between the new share issue and net assets acquired récorded in Retained earmings 5115
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35 Net debt reconciliation
This note sets out an analysis of net debt and dynamics of net debt for each of the periods presented

Net debt balances as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018

As at 31/12/2019 As at 31/12/2018

Cash and cash equivalenis 23,409 11,438
Short-term investments, term deposits and other financial assets 6 .
Borrowings payable after one year (30.737) -
Borrowings® payable within one financiat year (including overdraft) {79,577) (22.451)
Net debt B —— nEmeserT {86,899) GRS

*For the purpase of net debt calculation, borrowings comprise only debts to financial institulions and other debts relating to financing.

The Accounting Standards do not provide a definition of net debt ratio. because, when considering the amendment to |IAS 7, the standard-setting
body did not gain consensus on the definition of that term and what should or should not be included in the calculation of net debit.

Reconciliation of net debt balances to cash flows from financing activities in 2019 and 2018:

Liabilities arising from
Other assets - : e
financing activities in total
Short-term
investments, term Non-current and current
deposits and other borrowings

financial assets

Liabilities arising from financing activities

Cash/overdraft

Net debt as at 1 January 2013 5,699 - {31,338} {25,739)
Cash flows 5839 - 8,887 14726
Qther non-cash changes - - - -
Net debt as at 31 December 2018 11,438 : [22.451) (11,013}
Cash flows 11,971 - - 11,971
Loans received . (83.821) (83.821)
Repayments of borrowings - 23,296 23,206
Interest expenses - - 1,237 1.237
Loans and interests taken over in a business

combination (27,162} {27.162)
Other non-cash changes - & {1,413) (1.407)
Met debt as at 3t December 2013 23,409 B {110,314) {86,899)

36 Contingent liabilities and assets

Guarantees issued and received

Between January and December of 2019, the Company did not sign any new guarantee agreements.
As at 31 December 2019, no other guarantees were received by the Company from other enlities.
Litigations

On 17 December 2018, the Company appiied o the Vilnius Court of Commercial Arbitration for damages of EUR 1,676,989.06 due 10 the
defendant’s failure to purchase all the required amount of liquefied natural gas assigned in 2015 and payment of default interest of EUR
122.755.60. On July 4 preliminary hearing of Vilnius Commercial Arbitration took place. The case is not yel closed

Tax audits

The State Tax Inspectorate has the right to inspect records and documents for the last three tax years at any time and to calculate additional
taxes and penalies. The Company’'s management is not aware of any circumstances that could result in potential significant liabilities in this
respect

Prepayment for gas

In December 2019, the Company and PAQO Gazprom agreed on supply of natural gas in 2020, The agreement contains ‘take-or-pay’ clause
under which the Company has a commitment to purchase the agreed minimum quantity of natural gas. Based on forecast consumption data.
the Company plans to purchase all agreed quantity of natural gas during 2020.
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37 Events after the Reporting Period
COVID-19 Pandemic

Description of non-adjusting event

The World Health Qrganization {WHO) declared the outbreak of COVID-19 a public health emergency of international concern on 30 January
2020, and on 11 March 2020, characterized the spread of the disease as a pandemic. On 18 March 2020, more than 215,000 cases of COVID
19 infection have been confirmed in 152 countries and territories. The COVID-19 pandemic originated in the capital of China's Hubei province
in early December, but untit 27 December 2019 the cutbreak went unncticed until the origin of the disease was observed on 27 December 2019
The source of outbreak of the disease was identified on 31 December 2019, and COVID-19 was detected as the cause of the disease on 8
January 2020. The outbreak of COVID-19 was reported in the European Union. ltaly, on 31 January 2020 On 26 February 2020, the Government
of the Republic of Lithuania declared a national level emergency in the whole country due to the threat of the spread of the ceronavirus, and on
14 March 2020 it adopted the resolution No 152 “On the declaration of a national level emergency’. on the basis of which quarantine was
announced in the entire territory of the Republic of Lithuania from 16 March 2020 until 27 April 2020 with the possibilty of being extended. The
following measures have been applied during the quarantine pericd:

. Restriction of movement of citizens across the border and inside the country {movement of goads in unrestricied).

. Restriction of public and private sector activities: work at state and municipa! institutions of the public sector, in state-owned and
municipal enterprises and servicing of customers is organised remotely, certain private sector activities (shops, trading and/or
entertainment centres, except spaces where foad and pharmaceutical products are sold. cultural. sporis events, etc.) are prohibited.

. Education and childcare services and school education services in all educational establishments are suspended.

. The work of health care establishments has been established, etc.

After dectaring a state of emergency and quarantine, the Parliament of the Republic of Lithuanta adopted amendmenis aimed at preserving jobs
and helping the citizens. On 16 March 2020, by the decision of the meeting of the Government of the Republic of Lithuama {minutes No 14), the
plan for economy stimulation and reduction of consequences caused by COVID-19 was adopted. which provides for measures regarding the
preservation of both private and business income. as well as preservation of liquidity and the promotion of the economy, where one of the
measures is to allow for the deferral of payments to UAB lgnitis {hereinafter — the Company) for electricity and natural gas consumed or set the
payment in instalments.

Company management considers this event non-adjusting. since_it is evidence of conditions and events occurred after the reporting period.
Financial impact

The Company is one of the companies of Ignitis Group UAB (hereinafter — the Group). The financial impact on the Company due to the situation
described above, which has occurred both in the world and in Lithuania and has directly and indirectly affected the achities of the Company
and the Group, is presented below:

Events after the end of the reporting period as a result of Estimated firancial impact atter the date of issue of

ACiLiLy COvID-19 financial statements

Payment delay under the support schemes of the Government
Public supply of the Repubtic of Lithuania Payment delays of EUR 2.5 million (maximum}

Payment delay under the support schemes of the Govermment
B28 electricity supply of the Republic of Lithuania Payment delays of EUR 7 million {maximum}

Payment delay under the support schemes of the Government
Supply to residents (gas) of the Republic of Lithuania Payment delays of ELUR 2.3 million (maximum)

Payment delay under the support schemes of the Gavernment
B2B gas supply of the Republic of Lithuania Payment delays of EUR & million (maximum}
Dedicated supply None Reasonable assumptions for the assessment outstanding
Wholesale None Reasonable assumptions for the assessment outstanding
Export None Reasonable assumptions for the assessment outstanding
B2B and B2C projects None Reasonable assumptions for the assessment outstanding

B28 —sales to business customers
B2C - sales to individual customers.

Going Concern

There are no significant risks on the Company'’s ability to continue as going concern. There is pothing to suggest that electricity and gas supply
could be disrupted by COVID 19, The negative impact of consumption may be potentially observed in the business segment, but this must not
pose a threat {o the Company's ability te ¢onlinue as a going concern

Fair value measurement

Fair value was measured based on market data available at the reporting date. tharefore, it was estimated using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or the liability under current market conditions. including assumptions about risk. The Company
made the assumptions using all available information. including information that might be obtained through due diligence efforts that are usval
and customary. Unobservable inputs should be used to measure fair value to the extent thal relevant observable inpuls are not available
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

The fair value measurement objective is to convey the fair value of the asset or liability that reflects conditions as of the measurement date and
not a future date. Although events occurring after the measurement date may provide insight into the assumptions used in estimating fair value
as of the measurement date {especially those that are unobservable), they are only adjusted to the extent where they provide additional evidence
of conditions that existed at the measurement date and these conditions were known or knowable by market participants When making the
assessments for measuring fair value, the Company considered what conditions and the corresponding assumptions were known or knowable
to market participants at the measurement date. i.e. as at 31 December 2019. The COVID-19 outbreak and associaled risks were not taken into
account when measuring the fair value at the measurement date, because there were no such observable or unobserved data on the conditions
for the assessment of risk of COVID-19 that existed as at 31 December 2019.

Expected credit loss assessment

The Company has to incorporate reasonable information into the assessment of expected credit losses at the reporting date {i e. 31 December
2019). Given that the COVID-19 was identified only in January 2020, and a “Public Health Emergency of Internatienal Concern” was declared
on 20 January 2020. The Company did not include the COVID-19 factor in ils assessment of expected credit loss. When making the assessment
of expected credit losses at the reporting date, the management has reasenably taken into account past events. current conditicns and the
forecast of future economic conditions that were present and known as at 31 December 2019,

On 16 March 2020, by the decision of the meeting of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania {minutes No 14}, the plan for economy
stimulation and reduction of consequences caused by COVID-19 was adopted, recommending that the Company supports residents and
companies by deferring payments for electricity and gas consumed.

The Company has reviewed its internal credit management procedures and established internal procedures for administering deferred
paymentis.

In assessing the impact on cash flows, the Company uses the following assumptions:

D Deferrals will only be granted for the quarantine pericd, assuming the quarantine lasts for three months.

. Total receivables will increase by EUR 35 milkion, including deferred and late payments.

- The management expects to compensate up to EUR 15 million by extending the payment terms to distribution and transmission
operators, as well as to the State Tax Inspectorate.

. The necessary funds to cover the amounts deferred will be withdrawn from the Company’s cash pool.

Impairment assessment

The Company assessed the impairment of non-financial assets for all indications of impairment at the reporting date. Events after the reporting
pericd and informalion received after the reporting period should be considered in the impairment indicator assessment onty if they provide
additional evidence of conditions that exisied at the end of the reporting period. Similarly, the determination of the recoverable amounts of an
asset should only consider the information oblained after the reporting date if such conditions existed as of the reporting period end Given that
the COVID-19 was identified only in January 2020, and a “Public Health Emergency of International Concern” was declared on 20 January 2020,
the Company did not include the COVID-19 factor in its impairment assessment. In assessing the impairment of assels at the reporting date.
the management has reasonably taken into account all indications that were present and known as at 31 December 2019

Other financial statement disclosure requirements
Impact of COVID-19 on value of derivatives paortfolio

The Company lrades in Nasdaq Derivatives Market for the purpose of hedging its B2B electricity portfolio. Electricity prices in the Nordpool
area dropped significantly for reasons unrelated to COVID-19. This was caused by the warm winter and the excess water in Scandinavia. At
the moment, we cannot estimate exactly what additional impact COVID-19 will have, but it is very likely that this crisis will temporarily reduce
electricity demand for businesses, which, together with surplus generation, is likely to keep prices low for quite some time.

Since the Company does not speculate in derivatives (uses only for hedging purposes). the risk arises from the impairment of derivalives. and
the loss from derivalives is covered at the time of supply by purchasing at market price and selling to the customer at a previously agreed price
(fixed-price contracts). If the crisis were to continue, customers would consume less and the loss from derivatives would not be fully covered
At the time of reporting, there were no reascnable assumptions for estimating the potential loss.

There were no other significant events after 31 December 2019 and until the date of approval of the {inancial statements
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ANNUAL REPORT OF IGNITIS UAB FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019

The annual report of Ignitis UAB was prepared in accordance with the requirements set in the Law of the Republic of Lithuama
on Financial Reporting by Undertakings and the Republic of Lithuania Law on Companies The Company's secunties are neither
listed nor traded in the regulated market. The Company's Arlicles of Association do not establish other requirements for the
contents of the annual report in addition to those stipulated in the Law of the Republic of Lithuarua on Financial Reporling by
Underiakings. Further in this report Ignitis UAB is referred to as Ignitis or the Company.

Basic data about the Company

Company name: ignitis UAB*

Legal form:

Private Limited Liability Company

Issued capital

EUR 4{.140.000.26"*

Date of registration:

2 September 2014

Place of registration:

Register of l.egal Entities

Company code:

303383884

Registered office address:

Zvejy st. 14. LT-09310 Vilnius

Register name:

Register of Legal Entities

Telephone: +370611 21802
Fax: +370 5232 7706
E-mail: info@ignitis It
Website: www.ignitis. it

* As from 6 September 2019, the name of Lieluvgs Energijos Tiekimas UAB was changed to Ignibs UAB.

“* As from 1 January 2019, the Company completed the reorganisation by way of merger. i.e. Ignitis UAB. which is continues its
activities, was merged with LITGAS UAB, which ceased its activities after the reorganisation. All the assets, nghts and obligahons
including issued capital, of LITGAS UAB were taken over by Ignitis UAB that continues its activities

As from 1 June 2019, the Company completed the rearganisation by way of merger. Le Ignitis UAB, which is continues ils
activities, was merged with Energijos Tiekimas UAB, which ceased its activities after the reorgarisation. All the assets, rights
and obligations, including issued capital, of Energijos Tiekimas UAB were taken over by Ignitis UAB that continues its activities

Description of the Company's activities and service market

The Company's core line of business is the supply of electricity and natural gas. The Company aiso develops a wide range of
smart services, offers the market innovative energy saving, €lectric car charging, solar power generation solutions and other
products based on technological innovations. The Company is also engaged in planning and/ balancing of electricity consumption,
trading of guarantees of origin and derivatives

The Company supplies electricity and natural gas to corporale customers operating in the sectors of energy. small commercial
businesses. and to private customers The Company has a total of around 594 thousand customers. The Company supplies
electricity to more than 1.6 million private customers and more than 7.5 thousand business customers. The Company has a
natural gas supply permission and a licence for supply of electricity issued by the National Energy Reguiatory Council (hereinafter
“the NERC"). The Company also operates as a designated supplier at the Klaipéda Liquefied Natural Gas Terminal.

ignitis UAB is part of Ignitis Group of energy companies controlled by the State.

In 2019, the Company further developed small-scale liquefied natural gas (LNG) operations by reloading LNG from the ficating
storage unit Independence to small-scale LNG carriers

In 2019, the Company continued to successfully supply gas to consumers in Latvia.

In 2019, the Company further increased tha volumes of trade 1n gas-fired condensing boiters, heat pumps and key components,
as well as their installation services

Objective overview of the Company's financial position, performance and development

Significant events dunng the reporting period

¢ On1January 2019, LITGAS UAB was merged into Lietuvos Energijos Tiekimas UAB.
=  On 1June 2019 Energijos Tiekimas UAB was merged in to the Company which resulted in a new corporate structure

. On 2 September 2019, the NERC approved Terms and reference on verification of reports on regulated actvities by
the Resolution No O3E-386 of 2 September 2019. On the basis of these Terms and reference the verifications of the
reports on regulated activities will be carried out for the reporting period (financial year) of 2019

= As of 6 September 2019 the legal name of Lietuvos Energijos Tiekimas UAB was changed to Ignitis UAB
= On 10 October 2019, 50 fast charging stations for electnc vehicles lgnitis ON were launched in Vilmus, thereby

complementing the biggest fast charging network for electric vehicles in Lithuanta. Additional 59 stations were installed
112019
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* On 10 October 2019, the Methodofogy for Setting Power Transmission, Distribution and Public Supply Services and
Pubic Price Cap. has been changed and which s effective as from 1 January 2020 This Methodelogy provides for a
higher return on activity from public supply activities

=+ 17 October 2019, The price cap for the public electricity supply service for the year 2020 was set. The NERC set the
price cap for the public electricity supply service for the year 2020 to 0.370 ctkWh. Compared to the price cap set for
2019 (0.281 c/kWh, excl. VAT). the public power supply service price cap increased by 31.7%

+ On 22 October 2019, an on-kne platform fgnitis Saulés Parkar was launched It is the first platform of national
significance in the world which offers the opportunity to generate electricity from solar energy for both residents of
single and multi-family homes. At the same time. this platform is open to all selar power plant developers who can
submit their projects for sale. It is expected that the first power plant offered on the platform igritis Saulés Parka: will
start generating electricity already in May 2020

. On 28 November 2019, the prices of natural gas for househald cuslomers for the first half of 2020 were agreed with
the NERC.

. On 28 Nevember 2019, the NERC approved electncity prices for household customers for 2020 applicable as of 1
January 2020. On average. electricity prices for household consumers are growing by about 14.7%.

- On 2 December 2019, a second projects for remote solar power plants was offered on the platform ignitis Saulés
Parkai. The energy will be generated by a total of 4.774 solar modules with a total power of 1,599 2 kW

. On 30 December 2019, the NERC set 38.55% lower natural gas security component. which comes in to effect as from
1 January 2020.

Business environment

In 2019, natural gas was imported into Lithuania from the Russian company Gazprom PAQ, and par of the gas was delivered to
Lithuania by LNG carriers from various countries of the waorld.

Active investments in renewable energy projects and implementation of innovative ideas continued in the third quarter of this year
based on {he goals setin the Company’s sirategy for 2030. However, perhaps the most important event for the Group during this
period was the consolidation of the trademarks of different the Group companies into a single international trademark Ignitis,
which will contribute to an even faster transformation of the Company into a modern energy company.

The Company was actively operating in the wholesale market. purchased and sold gas in the Gas Exchange, and conducted
trading with other players of the wholesale market, i.e. provided gas stream balancing services.

In 2018, the quantity of natural gas sold in Lithuania declined, i.e. the market had shrunk. The biggest impact on the decling in
natural gas consumption was the uncompetitive gas prices applied until 2014 and the lack of alternative gas supply. High natural
gas prices made the new investments possible to other alternative energy sources (the use of biofuels for heat and electricity
production). Only after an alternative supply of liquefied natural gas emerged and after reaching agreement with PAQ Gazprom
on a significant price reduction of imported natural gas from Russia, the dechine in natural gas consumption in Lithuania has
stopped. As the natural gas prices regained competitiveness. the nafural gas market became more active in 2017, This was the
first year for natural gas consumption to increase by nearly 4% In 2018, excluding the quantity of Achema AB, the consumption
of natural gas in Lithuania continued on the upward trend. Buring 2019, a total of 23.5 terawatt hours (TWh) of the natural gas
was consumed in Lithuania last year. i.e. the consumption increased by 1.2 TWh or 5%. Due lo the growing supply of LNG, the
prices for LNG reached historic lows in 2018, This also led to increasing gas consumption in Lithuania. n 2019, Lithvania’s natural
gas market was followed by slightly lower LNG imports compared to 2018. when low LNG prices stimulated greater activity of
domeslic natural gas suppliers in the international LNG market

In 2019, following merger with ET, the Company continued its retail and wholesale electricity trade in Lithuania by further acquiring
its electricity portfolio on the power exchange of the Northern European countries Nord Pool (hereinafter "NP") or through bilateral
coniracts. On 1 June 2019 the Company look aver and continued the trading in electricity derivatives on the Stock Exchange
NASDAQ Commodities. Trading of derivatives serves to mitigate electricity price fluctuation risks.

Seeking to meet the requirements i terms of the quality of services, the Company continuously focuses on enhancing the

compliance of its sales and services with customer needs, improvement of customer service, and consisient opimisation of
business processes and development of services.

The most important foreseeable events and {rends in 2020 that might have impact on the Lithuamian natural gas and electricity
markets are the following.

«  The LNG prices are expected lo remain competitive (save for certain exceplions). thereby leading to the likelihood of
further competition in terms of LNG and natural gas across the region.

. in 2020, the Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania plans to announce the plan on the deregulation of the
electricity market for household customers (or part thereof) applicable as from 2021.
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Description of key risks and uncertainties faced by the Company

Information about financial risk management, hedging instruments in respect of its main categories of
transactions qualifying for hedge accounting, and exposure to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow rigk, in relation to the use by the Company of financial instruments and. where material for
the assessment of assets, equity, liabilities, revenue and expenses

Financial risks

In performing its activities, the Company 1s exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, and natural
gas and electnaity price nsk. By managing these risks, the Company seeks to mitigate the effects of factors that might have an
adverse effect on the Company's financial performance

Credit risk

The Company diversifies its free liquid funds held at banks and enters into transactions only with those financial institutions that
have assigned lo themselves or have been assigned by their controlling banks a long-term credit rating of not lower than ‘A
accerding to the rating agency Fitch Ratings or equivalent rating of other rating agencies

The Company's exposure to credit risk anses from defaulting customers. Principles of managing this risk. control processes,
accountable persons and monitoring procedures are set out in internal legislation The Company manages this risk by ensuring
that natural gas is sold only to business customers with positive credit histary and not in excess of the acceptahle credit risk
exposure limit. The level of trade recewvables is monitored, the changes in trade receivables are analysed, and the debt limits of
customers are reviewed on a regular basis.

Ligundity nsk

Liquidity risk is managed by planning the movement of cash flows of the Company. Cash flow forecasts are made to minimize
wuidity risk. Short-term financing (credit ines, cashpool of Ignitis Group) from both the financial institutions and the shareholders
is used {0 manage short-term mismatches of cash flows {inflows and outflows)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk mainly arises from current borrowings {that may be necessary to balance out the working capital) and from
guarantees 1ssued that are necessary to secure the fulfilment of liabilities arising from trading activities All loans granted are
subject to variable rates. the Company does not use any instruments to manage the exposure to the risk of variations of interest
rates

Foreign exchange risk

Purchase/sale contracts of the Company are denominated mostly in the euro, rarely in some other currencies. As a result,
changes in exchange rates of foreign currencies do not have a significant impact on the Company's equity.

Natural gas and electricity price risk

The purchase prices of natural gas and electricity depend on the prices of these resources in the exchanges In the opinion of
the Company, this risk is managed effectively by determining the natural gas price for business customers on the basis of the
same variable component values, and by including the developments in the prices of electnicity and gas into the mechanism for
the establishment of regulated prices for private customers.

Part of the gas and electricity is supplied to business customers under long-term fixed-price contracts. The electricity and gas
price risk under these contracts is hedged through derivative lransaclions.

Analysis of financial and non-financial perfformance

During January-December 2019, Ignitis supplied 9.822 thousand MWh of natural gas to its customers. Of which 4,636 thousand
MWh of natural gas was supplied to business customers and 2,077 thousand MWh of natural gas was supplied to private
customers in Lithuania. 1,259 thousand MWh of natural gas was supplied to customers in the Latvian market. The volume of
LNG relcaded totalled 542 thousand MWh of nalural gas. The total volume of gas supplied declined by 13% compared to the
total sales made by former Lietuvos Energijos Tiekimas and Litgas in 2018 mainly as a result of decline in gas sales to business
customers in Lithuania and a change in regulation of the designated supply model LNG congestion increased by nearly 84%
and sales in Latvia grew by 85%.

During 2019, the Company supplied EUR 2,884.0 million kWh of electricity to public supply customers. The Company started this
activity on 1 Octlober 2018. A decrease of 4% was also recorded in the activity of supplying electricity to business customers in
2019, which the Company took over from ET as from 1 June 2019

In 2019, the Company's revenue totalled EUR 433.358 million, 1.e. 48% more compared to 2018. Revenue growth resulted from
the mergers of new activities in 2019. The accounting principles were changed and sales revenue was adjusted (EUR -103
million} in 2019, as part of the Company's main achvities was identified as agent activilies in the price components of PSO and
electricity transmission, gas distribution and LNG in elecltricity and gas tarff compenents, respectively, as further described in
Note 4.

In 2019, the Company incurred loss of EUR 5.3 million (net loss in 2018 amounted to EUR 5.9 million). The Company's operations
were loss-making due to higher purchase prices of electricity compared to established prices for the public electricity supply
service. These losses in 2019 amounted to EUR 9.2 million and should be compensated through the regulatory mechanism in
the upcoming regutatory periods



In 2019. the Company did not pay any dividends

The {ables below presents the Company's financial performance.

Financial indicators, 2019 2018

(EUR ‘000) {restated)* Ehanpe
Sales 437,360 208,754 228,606
Net profit (loss} -5,336 -5.921 586
Assets 232,337 130.222 102,118
Equity 40,354 10,649 29,705
Liabilities 191,983 119,573 72,410
Borrowings 110,314 22,451 87,863
* Due to changes in accounting policies, the amounts indicated do not correspond to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018
EBITDA (EUR “600) 2019 2018 Change
Profit/{loss) before tax -4,788 ~10,862 6,074
Finance income 426 205 221
Finance costs -1.439 -142 1,297
Depreciation and amortisation (including depreciation
under IFRS 16} -5312 -825 -4,486
Impairment and write-offs of non-current assets 2500 } 2,500
EBITDA 4,037 -10,100 16,137

EBITDA = Profit (loss) before tax + finance costs - finance income + depreciation and amortisation (including depreciation under

IFRS 16} + impairment and wnite-offs of non-current assets

In 2019, the Company's adjusted EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation), i.e. EBITDA after
elimination mismatches between the expenses and revenue included in the gas and elecltricity prices for household customers
and those actually incurred, between the projected and aclual LNG acquisition and realisation prices and quantities, and change
in the market value of open financial derivative instruments, amounted to EUR 7.3 million The decrease in operating profit was
influenced by the acquisition of the public supply activities on 1 October 2018 and intangible asset recognised upon acquisition
including amartisation thereof, as well as the higher costs incurred in writing-off of receivables and impairment loss related to

those aclivities

Adjusted financial performance results

For the period from 1 For the period from 01
January 2019 to 31 January 20186 to 31
December 2019 December 2018
EBITDA 4,037 10.100
Mismatches between the expenses and revenue
included in the gas prices for household customers and -10.526 4372
those actually incurred
Mismatches belween the projected and actual LNG 939
acquisition and realisation prices and quantities
Mismatches between the expenses and revenue
included in the electricity prices for household 9,209 22 267
customers
Adjustments of revenue and expenses of the supply of 043 292

electricity due to overdeclaration and accrual
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Change in market value of open financial derivative

. 2,219 -167
instruments

Total adjustment effects 2.784 23,181
Adjusted EBITDA 6821 13,081

More details about the Company's financial performance results are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of Ignites
for the year 2019.

Information on environmental and personnel-related topics

The Company's activities comply with the requirements stipulated in the environmental legislation.

In 2019, the Company used a system of variable remuneration and employee performance management Remuneration of the
Company's employees consists of a fixed and a variable component The fixed component of remuneration is established based
on the job position and the competence level, which is altributed after an assessment of the competences necessary for the
position, education, responsibilities and the significance of decisions for the Cempany. The variable component of the
remuneration is paid for measurable performance results, i.e with respect to each position for the achievement of set objectives.
As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 104 employees, whergof 11 employees were on child care leave (31 December
2018 — the Company had 38 employees, whereof 6 employees were on child care leave)

References to or additional explanations of data reported in the annual financial statements

All financial data presented in this annual report is consistent with the Company's audited financial statements.

Information on own shares held or acquired by the Company, the number of own shares acquired or
disposed of during the reporting period, their nominal value and percentage of issued capital they
represent, and information on payment for own shares, provided they are acquired or disposed of in
return for a consideration.

At the beginning of the reporting period. the Company had no own shares, nor acquired any during the reporting period
Information on the Company's branches and representative offices

The Company has no branches and representative offices.

The Company has three subsidiaries

_ The Company's ownership Profile of
| Company Repistered office address interest as at 31 December Izsued capital activities
. e el : 2019 A
Ignitis Eesti OU Narva g. 5, 10117 Tallinn, Estonia 100% EUR 35.000 R"e‘f:'cgfg’; [
Ignitis Latvijia SIA Darzciema st 60, LV-1048, Riga 100% EUR 5,500,000 Re;f:'ct‘:i‘i’;'”
” Pulawska g. 2B, Warsaw, 02-568, EUR 2.339,216 23 Wholesale trade
Ignéiis Polske, Sp-z/o.c. Poland 100% (PLN 10.000,000) in electricity

Significant events after the end of the reporting period

+ As from 1 January 2020, the Company supplies gas to the Finnish market through the gas pipeline connection
Baticconnector The Company has already entered into a gas supply agreement with a number of Finland's largest
business customers.

. On 1 January 2020. the change of the Company’s structure takes place The customer service funclion is transferred
from the external service provider to the Company

«  The World Health Organization (WHQ) declared the outbreak of COVID-19 a public health emergency of international
concern on 30 January 2020, and on 1% March 2020, characterized the spread of the disease as a pandemic. On 26
February 2020. the Government of the Republic of Lithuania declared a national level emergency in the whole couniry
due to the threat of the spread of the coronavirus, and on 14 March 2020 it adopted the resolution No 207 "On the
declaration of a national level emergency”. on the basis of which quarantine was announced in the entire territory of
the Repubhc of Lithuania from 16 March 2020 until 27 April 2020 with the possibility of being extended. There are no
significant risks on the Company’s ability to continue as going concern  The supply of electricity and gas should not
be disrupted by COVID-19, for which there are no preconditions. The negative impact of consumption may be



potentially observed in the business segment. but this must not pose a threat to the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern

The Company's operation plans and forecasts

Given the constant changes in business environment, the Company seeks to diversify its activities in terms of both geographica
coverage and development of its products and services to ensure that it meets the needs of customers and offers the best
possible solutions

Information on the Company's research & development activities

The Company plans to centinue a sustainable development of its current activities aimed at improving profitability and efficient
use of assels in a long run. Research will be conducied on as-needed basis

Financial instruments in use
Fair value accounting is applied to all the financiat and hedging instruments used by the Company

information on the other executive positions held by the Company's Manager, members of the Board,
and members of the Supervisory Board and the most significant information on their principal
workplace

Based on the Artictes of Association effective at 31 December 2019 the management bodies of the Company include as follows
. the General Meeting of Shareholders:
« the Supervisory Board
. the Board
. CEOQ.

The General Meeting of Shareholders

The General Meeting of Shareholders is the supreme managament body of the Company. The scope of competence and the
procedure for its convention and adoption of decisions by the mesting are established by the laws. cther legal acts and the
Company's Articles of Association

Supervisory Board

The Company's Supervisory Board 1s a collegial supervisory body. Its competence. procedures of decision making. election and
recalling of the members are established in laws, other legal acts and the Company's Articles of Association. The Company's
Supervisory Board has three members etected for the term of office of four years by the General Meeting of Shareholders At
least one third of the Supervisory Board should be formed from independent members. The Supervisory Board elects its Chairman
from its members.

Members of the Supervisory Board {during the reporting period)

- s e T S S — ’ —
E Fult name 'Eiﬁpc&;:&;egraoam members '_" _Eﬁ%‘gnmg of the term of | & ot the tem of office :
Vidmantas Principle workplace: Ignitis Grou

Salietis UAB (company code 301844044, | 1 June 2019 31 May 2023

Member of the | address: Zvejy st. 14, LT-09310

Supervisory Vilnius), Member of the Board,

Board Director  for Commerce and

Services

Gamybos  Optimizavimas UAB
{company code 304972024,
address: Zvejy g. 14, LT-09310
Vilnius), Member of the Board

Elektroniniy Mokéjimy Agentara
UAB {company code 136031358,
address. Zveju st. 14. LT-09310
Vilntus}

Member of the Board

NT Valdos UAB (company code
300634954, address: Smolensko




st. 5, LT-03202 Vilnius), Chairman
of the Board

Nord Pool AS {company code
address: P.O. Box 121. 1325
Lysaker, Norway) Member of the
Customer Advisory Board

Dominykas
TuZkus
Member of the
Supervisory
Board

Principle workplace: Ignitis Group
UAB (company code 301844044,
address: Zvejy st. 14, LT-09310
Vilnius), Member of the Board
Director for  Infrastructure and
Development

Cther executive positions:

Ignitis Gamyba AB (company code
302648707, address: Eleklrinés st.
21, LT-26108 Elektrénai)
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

ignitis Renewables UAB (company
code 304988904, address: Zvejy g
14, LT-09310 Vilnius), Member of
the Board

Vilniaus  Kogeneracing  Jégainé
UAB (company code 303782367,
address: Zveju st. 14, LT-09310
Vilnius), Chairman of the Board

1 June 2019

31 May 2023

Paulius
Dambrauskas,
Independent
member

Girteka Logistics UAB (company
code 300569015, address: Radiy
st. 1, LT-03154 Vilnius), Executive
Director

1 June 2019

31 May 2023

The Board

The Board 1s a collegial management body provided for in the Articles of Association of the Company. Board members are elected
for the term of office of four years and removed from office by the Supervisory Board. The Board consists of 5 members and
elects the Chairman, the CEQ of the Company, from among its members. The Board members have to ensure the appropriate
performance of the Company activities.

Members of the Board {during the reporting period)

| Padicipation: of Board members in

pimt hame ___ other aclivilies : of office o Eliadsnpipice
Darius Principle workplace: Ignitis UAB | 1 June 2019 31 May 2023
Montvila {company code 303383884,

Chairman of tha
Board

1 Beginning of the term ]

address: Zvejy st 14, LT-09310
Vilnius}, CEC, Charman of the
Board

Other executive positions. Ignitis
Grupés Paslaugu Centras UAB
{company code 303200016.
address: A. JuozapaviGius st. 13,
Vilnius), Member of the Board

Ignitis Latvija SIA {(company code
40103642991. address: Césu st
31, LV-1012, Riga, Latvia)
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Ignitis Polska sp. z o.0. {company
code 0000681577, address

Pulawska st. 2, Building B, Warsaw.
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02-566, Poland), Member of the
Supervisary Board

Vilniaus Perkono Rotary Klubas
{company code 125078659
address Jogailos st. 4, LT-01118
Viinius), Member the Board
president

Honorary Consul of the Federal
Democratic Republic of Nepal in

Vilnius
Haroldas Principle workplace: Ignitis UAB | 1 June 2019 31 May 2023
Nauséda {company code 303383884,

address: Zvejy st. 14, LT-08310
Vilnius), Director for B2B Clients
and Expansion, Member of the
Board

Other executive positions: Ignitis
Eesti OO0 (company code
12433862, address: MNarva st. 5
10117 Tallinn, Estonia), Member of
the Board.

Andrius Principle warkplace: Ignitis UAB | 1 June 2019 31 May 2023
Kavaliauskas {company code 303383884,
address: Zveju st. 14, LT-D9310
Vilnius), Head of B2C at ignitis,
Member of the Board

Artiras Principle workplace: Ignitis UAB | 1 June 2019 31 May 2023
Bortkevifius (company code 303383584,
address: Zvejy st. 14, LT-09310
Vilnius), Director of Finance and
Business  Support  Department
Member of the Board

Other executive positions: Ignitis
Latvija SIA  (company code
40103642991, address: Césu st
31, LV-1012. Riga. Latvia), Member
of the Supervisory Board

Ignitis Polska sp. z 0.0. {company
code 0000681577, address:
Putawska st. 2, Building B, Warsaw,
02-566. Poland), Member of the
Supervisory Board

Tadas Principle workplace: Ignitis UAB | 1 June 2019 31 May 2023
Adomaitis {company code 303383884,
address: Zvejy st. 14, LT-09310
Vilnius), Head of wholesale trading,
Member of the Board

Changes in the structure of the Company’s Board during the reporting period: The Board, as appointed by the decision of the
sole shareholder, acted in the period from January to May 2018 with the term of office from 1 November 2018 until 31 May 2019
During the specified period. the composition of the Board consisted of: Vidmantas Salietis (Chairman of the Board, Member of
the Board of Ignitis Group UAB. Director of Commerce and Services), Dominykas TuCkus {(Member of the Board. Member of the
Board of Ignitis Group UAB, Director for Infrastructure and Development). Paulius Dambrauskas (Independent member of the
Board, Executive Director of Girteka Logistics UAB).
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Chief Executive Officer

Chief Executive Officer (hereinafter CEQ) acts as a single-person management body of the Company. CEO organises and
controls the operations of the Company . acts on behalf of the Company and enlers into agreements at his/her own discretion,
except for the cases stipulated in the Articles of Association and legal acts. The powers of the CEO, the procedure of histher
election and removal are established by laws, other legal acts and the Company’s Articles of Association. Information on the
Company's CEQ is presented below.

Fuli name

& i WIRE 3 C As N T et
Darius Montvila 2 April 2049 -
Mantas Mikalajonas 4 November 2014 1 April 2019 -
Chief Executive Officer Darius Montvila



